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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on the GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on the GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This annual report, for which the directors of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group” and the “Directors”, respectively) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER|E

As the Chairman and on behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”),
| am pleased to present the audited consolidated result of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2022.

During the year under review, the total revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB841,586,000,
representing an increase of 19% as compared with RMB705,456,000
for the previous year. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company increased to RMB193,565,000 from RMB143,283,000 last
year. For the year ended 31 December 2022, basic earnings per share
increased to RMB34.55 cents from RMB25.57 cents last year.

2022 is still an arduous and challenging year for the Company. In
recent years, due to the strengthening of environmental and resource
constraints, the national quality standards and environmental protection
standards for pharmaceuticals have been continuously raised, resulting
in rising production costs for enterprises; after the implementation of
the drug price control policy, the overall price level of pharmaceuticals
continued to decline, resulting in greater operating pressure on
pharmaceutical enterprises; the pandemic situation in many regions
of the country remained severe and complicated, but we overcame
many factors and moved forward in a steady pace, finally satisfactorily
completed the project targets set at the beginning of the year. The
results for the year were the result of the management’s assessment of
the situation and the joint efforts of all employees. Therefore, the Board
is pleased to share with the shareholders the following competitive
advantages of the Company, which will lead to new achievements for the
Company in the coming years.

1. With emphasis on sales as always, we persisted in expanding the
market through diverse channels and have established a professional
marketing team that primarily consists of clinical academic members,
supplemented by OTC members, which enabled the steady growth of
sales. We firmly focused on the sales target of the Hai Kun Shen Xi Jiao
Nang (82 B Z B %), our dominant product, we strived to ensure no loss
of existing market, continued to strengthen academic promotion, strived
to explore uncharted markets, proactively organized and participated
in academic conferences in relation to nephrology at state level and
gained market share. Meanwhile, we continued to increase the sales of
Compound Huonaoshu capsule (175 /&§%7 B %), our branded product,
and made further efforts in the production and marketing of injecting
drugs, including Edaravone injection (iR 25/ 51/K), and blood serum
tablet (MAK)E ), which propelled our sales to a new level.
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2. We emphasized the research and development of new drugs. We
cooperated with a number of pharmaceutical universities, research
institutes and a number of experts in the field of drug research and
development and scholars and increased investment in developing
technologically advanced new drugs, with independent intellectual
property rights. In 2022, 20 drug batches were registered. The Company
will strive to launch these products as soon as possible.

3. We have strictly followed the management regulations of the “Drug
Administration Law” and “Good Manufacturing Practice”, strengthened
management of production sites, established a rigorous quality control
system, applied quality concepts to production management, and
enhanced our efforts in quality control throughout the production
process. In connection with Company’s strategic development plan, we
strictly implemented production management, enhanced quality, reduced
costs, increased efficiency, so as to guarantee the supply of goods
against rapid growth in sales.

4. We strengthened system establishment to fully improve the level of
corporate management. The major measures include advancement of
hardware facilities, upgrade of quality management system, strengthening
of talent introduction and focus on talent cultivation, to ensure production
of high quality product, adapt to sales requirement in the market and
realize the goal of high quality development.

5. Focusing on the government’s strategic plan on the development of
healthcare industry and leveraging on the unique geographical resources,
our subsidiaries has carried out healthcare industrial projects to facilitate
sustainable, rapid and healthy development of the Company.

6. The Company will continue to explore and adjust its business
strategy, innovate development model, with the aim of pursuing the
path of sustainable development. We give full play to our technological
advantages, increase investment in technology, and intensify product
research and development, so as to capture the market with our leading
technology and high-end products.

The Group acknowledges the importance of environmental, social and
corporate governance as key elements in enhancing shareholders’
value. Thus, it is dedicated to improving its policies in compliance
with the respective regulatory requirements and in accordance with
internationally recommended practices. To achieve this aim, the Group
has continuously reviewed its resources, strengthened internal training
and sought professional advice from experts so as to safeguard interests
of the Group and the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Looking forward, we will ride on the momentum, overcome difficulties,
seize opportunities, and continue to uphold the business philosophy
of “focusing on technological innovation and serving the public and
endeavoring in the pursuit of health for people around the world”. With
pharmaceutical quality as the focus, market sales as the direction,
scientific and technological innovation as the basis, and academic
promotion as the strategy, we will adapt to the new situation, embrace
new challenges, add new vitality, and make every effort to achieve rapid
growth for “New Changlong” and grow into a centennial enterprise.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks to all
levels of staff and the management for their efforts and contributions in
2022 and my deep gratitude to our clients, business partners and owners
for their utmost support.

By order of the Board
Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
31 March 2023
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BUSINESS REVIEW

2022 is still an arduous and challenging year for the Company. In
recent years, due to the strengthening of environmental and resource
constraints, the national quality standards and environmental protection
standards for pharmaceuticals have been continuously raised, resulting
in rising production costs for enterprises; after the implementation of
the drug price control policy, the overall price level of pharmaceuticals
continued to decline, resulting in greater operating pressure on
pharmaceutical enterprises; the pandemic situation in many regions
of the country remained severe and complicated, and many of the
Company’s major sales provinces were affected to varying degrees, but
we still overcame many factors and moved forward in a steady pace,
finally satisfactorily completed the project targets set at the beginning of
the year. The results for the year were the result of the management’s
assessment of the situation and the joint efforts of all employees.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the manufacturing and sales of
Hai Kun Shen Xi Jiao Nang (/8 B = B%E) continued to be the Group’s

core source of revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s revenue increased
to RMB841,586,000 from approximately RMB705,456,000 while the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company increased
to RMB193,565,000 from RMB143,283,000. For the year ended 31
December 2022, basic earnings per share increased to RMB34.55 cents
from RMB25.57 cents last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the manufacturing and sales of
Hai Kun Shen Xi Jiao Nang (/8 B = B%) continued to be the Group’s
core source of revenue.

Investments in wealth management products

During the reporting year, the Group subscribed for and held various
short-term investments, from time to time, in the wealth management
products (the “Wealth Management Products”) issued by Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China, Agricultural Bank of China, Bank of China
and Postal Saving Bank of China. The Wealth Management Products
were mainly relatively lower risk of default. The expected annualised rate
of return of the Wealth Management Products subscribed during the year
was around 1.48%-4.72% (2021: 2.25%-4.13%), which was relatively
higher than the comparable market bank deposit interest rates.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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R-BZ_F+_A=+—0 AARHHE
B fh A L4 A R#263,074,0007C ° AN A &
T+ A=+ —BEEZEVER

As at 31 December 2022, the Company held Wealth Management
Products totalling approximately RMB263,074,000. Information of the &
Wealth Management Products held by the Company as at 31 December R =ZF = —

2022 is stated as follows: ZERIT
Unrealised gains Percentage to
on fair value the Group’s
change for the Fair value total assets
Name of the issuer Expected Initial year ended as at asat
of the wealth management Name of the wealth annualised investments 31 December 31 December 31 December
products (the “Issuers”) management products retur rate cost 2022 2022 2022
82
—8-= ]
TZA=t+-H RZZB=Zf
i LFE  R=¥==F +=A=t-H
BRERRTAZ BN W% 2DAE®®  +A=t-R 2BEE
ERIRITAD BHERZ LR hEE RERA  ZAERKE ZARE AR
(RMB'000) (RMB000) (RMB'000)
(AR®FR)  (ARBFT) (ARHFT)
Agricultural Bank of China “An Xin - 360 Tian” RMB wealth 3.25% 20,000 356 20,356 0.85%
- management product
MERRHT [%0 - 300K AR BIEHER
Bank of China “Ri Ji Yue Le" BOC accumulated 2.50% 10,000 2 10,032 0.42%
) wealth management | product
B RIT [REIRITHREE - RERIIEM
HEERER
Bank of China BOC Linked Structured Deposit 1.48%-4.72% 10,000 85 10,085 0.42%
(Institutional Customer) wealth
. management product
HERIT RIS TH AR
(BEEP)EHER
Industrial and Commercial “Ri Sheng Yue Heng” retum 3.30% 10,000 392 10,392 0.42%
Bank of China ascending corporate RMB wealth
) mana%gment/ product
PR THT (A7 Al s B A A
ANREEHER
Industrial and Commercial “ICBC Chao Duanq Faren” 2.60% 40,000 19 40,019 1.69%
Bank of China RMB wealth management product
HRETHERT [IRBEHEAARYETER
Industrial and Commercial “Ruyi Rensheng Hexin Youxuan 90 2.6%-3.6% 40,000 495 40,495 1,69%
Bank of China days” wealth management product
RETAERT [MEAEZLEEOR BT ER
Postal Saving “Cai Fu Xin Xin Xiang Rong” RMB 1.20%-2.70% 40,000 958 40,958 1.69%
Bank of Cﬂina ) wealth management product
PEBREERT [HEEEnR AREEHER
Postal Saving “Cai Fu Yue Yue Sheng” RMB wealth 2.711% 90,000 737 90,737 3.81%
Bank of China management product
MEEREERT [BIEARAIAREREER
Total 260,000 3,074 263,074
Aif
As at 31 December 2022, the unrealised gains on fair value change #HZE—-—Z—-——F#+_A=+—HIF ~A&EEFH
by the Group from the wealth management products as set out above Y FrEIEME DA LEEH 2 R EH W

amounted to approximately RMB3,074,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRRDN

The Issuers are licensed banks in the PRC, which are principally engaged
in the provision of corporate and personal banking and other financial
services in the PRC.

The subscriptions of Wealth Management Products were carried out
by the Group for treasury management purpose in order to maximize
the utilization of its surplus cash received from its business operations,
with a view to achieving balanced yields whilst maintaining high liquidity
and a low level of risks. Taking into account of, among others, the low
level of risks and the expected rates of return, the Group considers that
the subscriptions will provide the Group with better returns than the
returns on deposits generally offered by commercial banks and increase
the Group’s overall earnings in the long run. The Group will monitor
and manage the subscriptions more closely and effectively. As at 31
December 2022, the Group did not experience any losses on the wealth
management products. Further, the subscriptions were funded by the
surplus cash of the Company and are redeemable on demand or highly
liquid, therefore they would not affect the working capital or the operation
of the Group. As such, the Directors are of the view that the subscriptions
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole. The Group will continue to seek opportunities
in utilising its idle cash by investing in appropriate Wealth Management
Products.

During the reporting year, the number of principal guaranteed Wealth
Management Products in the market has been decreasing and the
expected return on Wealth Management Products has been gradually
decreasing, while the annual return rate on long term time deposits is
increasing and making it closer the return between time deposits and
Wealth Management Products. Based on a prudent investment strategy,
the management has changed the direction of investment and used most
of idle funds to invest in time deposits, making even safer for the Group.

The Group has established a Risk Management Committee to strengthen
the assessment and management of investments in Wealth Management
Products and time deposits, and conducts regular reviews of the Group’s
investment projects to control potential investment risks.

Save as disclosed, there were no other significant investments held
during the period under review.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s investments in the Wealth
Management Products were classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in its consolidated balance sheet, and amounted
to approximately RMB263,074,000 (2021: RMB176,533,000). For
the year ended 31 December 2022, the gain realised by the Group
from the Wealth Management Products amounted to approximately
RMB3,074,000 (2021: RMB1,869,000). As at 31 December 2022,
the Group’s investment in time deposits, classified as financial assets
measured at amortised cost in its consolidated balance sheet amounted
to approximately RMB866,856,000 (2021: RMB806,918,000).

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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OPERATION REVIEW

GMP compliance inspection
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has already
obtained GMP certificates for the following:

1. Small volume solution, lyophilized powder for injection, Power for
Injection (Cephalosporins), API (Yi Da La Fen) passed drug GMP
inspection, organized by the Provincial Center for Food and Drug
Inspection (certificate no.: JL20190015), valid until 30 January
2024.

2. As at 29 December 2020, small volume solution, lyophilized
powder for injection, powder for injection (Cephalosporins),
sterile API (Cefpiramide, Cefmenoxime Hydrochloride, Cefeprime
dihydrochloride, Cefazedone sodium salt) passed Drug GMP-
compliance inspection, organized by the Provincial Center for Food
and Drug Inspection. The evaluation result is in compliance with the
requirements of GMP (2010).

3. As at 22 June 2022, the production line of the API Workshop Il
(Edaravone) passed Drug GMP compliance inspection, organized
by Provincial Center for Food and Drug Inspection. The evaluation
result is in compliance with the requirements of GMP (2010).

4, Biochemical pretreatment and extraction production line As at
15 November 2022, biochemical pretreatment and extraction,
Lyophilized Powder for Injection Workshop, Lyophilized Powder for
Injection production line (Chymotrypsin for Injection) passed Drug
GMP compliance inspection, organized by Provincial Center for
Food and Drug Inspection. The evaluation result is in compliance
with the requirements of GMP (2010).

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is essential for the
future success of a pharmaceutical company. In the past, our R&D
department had successfully developed the medicine, Compound
Huonaoshu capsule, which had generated huge profit to the Group and
finally led to the listing of the Company in Hong Kong. In the year of
2003, our R&D department completed the development of Hai Kun Shen
Xi Jiao Nang, which has now become the largest contributor of revenue
and its revenue reached our target level.

The Group invested approximately RMB40,440,133 in research and
development projects during the year.
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PRODUCTION FACILITIES

Small Volume Injection Workshop Il of the Company put into operation to
increase production capacity of the Company during the year.

The consistency evaluation of Edaravone Injection has been passed
and entered into the seventh batch of national centralized procurement
Irbesartan has obtained registration approval and put into commercial
production.

The product catalogue of the Company is increasing and the construction
of workshop and development of drug will enhance R&D and market
competitiveness of the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s recorded revenue
amounted to approximately RMB841,586,000 (2021: RMB705,456,000),
representing an increase of approximately 19% as compared with the
figure of the previous year. The audited profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately RMB193,565,000,
representing an increase of 35% as compared with RMB143,283,000 of
the previous year. The basic earnings per share amounted to RMB34.55
cents (2021: RMB25.57 cents), representing an increase of RMB8.98
cents over the previous year.

The Board of Directors is pleased with the financial performance in 2022.
It is believed that the maintenance of profitability is attributed to the
following reasons:

1. We placed emphasis on sales and distribution and achieved
breakthrough so as to ensure the rapid growth of sales of our dominant
products and intensity the production and sales of injectable varieties and
invitational varieties, thereby reaching our sales target.

2. We have regarded drug quality as the lifeline, strictly implemented
the Drug Administration Law and the Good Manufacturing Practice,
enhanced job training, and strictly managed production, laying a solid
foundation for the Group’s steady development.

3. We continued to strengthen academic promotion, enhance our
understanding of clinical performance of various medicines and explore
the unique value of our products while proactively organizing and
participating in academic conferences in relation to nephrology at national
level.

4. We further strengthened our efforts on integrating market resources,
regulated sales practices, strengthened the buildup of sales teams,
adjusted sales strategies, launched various tasks around clinical sales
increment, increased the market share of products, and explored for new
breakthroughs.

5. We have investigated the market demand in multiple fields,
reconstructed the modern production workshops, purchased advanced
production equipment, and resumed production of key varieties to
promote new economic revenue for the enterprise.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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6. We enhanced the development of new species, built new R&D
inspection center with complete facilities and advanced inspection
equipment, for new product R&D trials and product quality control to
enhance the Company’s R&D strength.

7. Our subsidiaries have diversified and expanded, stimulated new
economic growth points, opened a new journey of strategic development,
and facilitated the sustainable development of the Group.

8. We strengthened system establishment to fully increase the level of
corporate management, to ensure production of high quality product,
adapt to sales requirement in the market and realize the goal of high
quality development.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately 77%, representing a 5.2% decrease as compared with
that of 82.2% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded other
income and gains of approximately RMB59,737,000, contrasting to a
figure of RMB51,616,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Distribution and selling costs increased to approximately
RMB404,851,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 from
approximately RMB360,717,000 in last year. These expenses accounted
for 48% of revenue in 2022, which represented a 3% decrease from 51%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, administrative expenses
increased to approximately RMB105,098,000 from approximately
RMB92,552,000 last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position during this year. As
at 31 December 2022, cash and bank balances of the Group amounted
to RMB113,601,000 (2021: RMB55,294,000) with total borrowings
of RMB400,000 (2021: RMB400,000) which were interest bearing at
commercial rates and unsecured. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had total assets of RMB2,372,841,000 (2021: RMB2,072,313,000)
which were financed by current liabilities of RMB714,594,000
(2021: RMB571,794,000), other payable of RMB1,961,000 (2021:
RMB953,000), deferred tax liabilities of RMB3,022,000 (2021:
RMB3,863,000) and shareholders’ equity of RMB1,612,298,000 (2021:
RMB1,4583,749,000).
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a net cash and cash
equivalents of RMB113,601,000. As at 31 December 2022, the ratio
of the total liabilities to the total assets of the Group was 32% (2021:
30%) which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total liabilities of
RMB760,543,000 (2021: RMB618,564,000) by the Group’s total equity
and liabilities of RMB2,372,841,000 (2021: RMB2,072,313,000). The
Group’s gearing ratio which derived from the total borrowings to total net
assets was 0.02% (2021: 0.03%).

EMPLOYEES

The Company has a total of 823 employees.

Remuneration is determined by reference to market conditions and
the performance, qualifications and experience of individual employee.
Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to
employees as recognition of and reward for their contribution. Other
benefits include contributions to retirement scheme and medical scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
understands a better future depends on everyone’s participation and
contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and
other stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities
which benefit the community as a whole.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees, has
enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality
products and services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable
development.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Hong

Aged 68, male, is the Chairman and secretary of the Party committee.
He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. His previous
positions are as follows: He was a teacher and the secretary of Youth
League Committee of Huinan No. 4 Middle School from September
1978 to October 1983; he worked in county and town governments from
November 1983 to September 1989, during which he held the position of
deputy town head; he has been the Chairman, and secretary of the Party
committee of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company
Limited since October 1989.

Mr. Zhang Hong is the father of Mr. Zhang Yi, our executive director.

Zhang Xiao Guang

Aged 59, male, is an executive director and general manager. He holds
a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. He held the positions of
the secretary of Youth League Committee of Chaoyang Town Engineer
Affairs Equipment Factory of Shenyang Railway Bureau from July 1983
to September 1989; deputy director of Foreign Trade Bureau of Huinan
County from October 1989 to November 1990; executive director
and deputy general manager of the Company since December 1990;
appointed as general manager since January 2015.

Zhao Bao Gang

Aged 56, male, is an executive director and chief finance officer. He
holds a bachelor degree and is a senior accountant. From August 1990
to May 1995, he acted as director of Finance Bureau of Huinan County;
from June 1995 to February 2007, he held the position of director and
equipment executive director and finance officer of Jilin Province Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and was appointed as
executive director and chief finance officer of the Company since March
2007.

Wu Guo Wen

Aged 58, male, is an executive director and deputy sale director. He
holds a master degree and is a senior engineer. From September 1988
to August 1991, he studied in Shanghai Medicine University; from
February 1993 to May 1996, he pursued master degree in Jilin University;
from June 1996 to August 2007, he acted as chief engineer of Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company and was appointed as executive
director and chief engineer on 9 August 2007; appointed as deputy sale
director of part of east China since 2010.
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Zhang Yi

Aged 42, male, is an executive director and executive general manager,
held a Master’s degree. He attended combined Bachelor’'s and Master’s
degree programs in the clinical department of Jilin University for seven
years from September 2000 to July 2007. He studied in the First Hospital
of Jilin University from 2007 to 2008 and took up IMBA courses in Beijing
Jiaotong University from 2009 to 2011. From 2011 to 2014, he worked as
the General Manager in Changchun Changyuan Pharmaceutical Industry.
He has been working in Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy
Company Limited as executive general manager since 2015.

Mr. Zhang Yi is son of Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman and executive
director of the Company.

Xu Xiang Fu

Aged 53, male, is an executive director and the Deputy Technical General
Manager held a tertiary qualification. He graduated from the School of
Medicine in Jilin, specializing in medicine, and is a senior engineer. He
has been working for Changlong Pharmacy since 1992 and is currently
the Deputy Technical General Manager of the Company. In 2015, he
was awarded two patents for inventing the “Methodology for Retrieving
Fucoidan” and “A Methodology for Retrieving Fucoidan”. In 2016,
he participated in the project of development and application in Hai
Kun Shen Xi Jiao Nang and was awarded the second-tier prize in Jilin
Province Science and Technology Award.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Gao Qi Pin

Aged 71, male, is currently the Professor and Lecturer for Doctoral
students in the research and development centre of Changchun University
of Chinese Medicine. He graduated from Shenyang Pharmaceutical
University with a Master’s degree in 1982. He was the Deputy Dean and
researcher of the provincial Academy of Sciences for Chinese Traditional
Medicine from 1982 to 1998, during which he had been working in
Kitasato Institute Hospital in Japan for two years and obtained the Doctoral
degree after working in the University of Tromsg in Norway for more than
four years. He was the Head of Jilin Provincial Institute for Drug Control
and Secretary of party committee from 1998 to 2006. He is now the
Professor and Lecturer for Doctoral students of Changchun College of
Traditional Chinese Medicine, the Officer of Key Laboratory of Chinese
Medicine Macromolecules in Jilin Province and the Officer of Key Research
Centre for Active Components of Chinese Medicines in the Ministry of
Education. He was the committee member of the eighth, ninth and tenth
Chinese Pharmacopoeia Commission; the National New Drug Appraisal
Expert; Science Advancement Award Appraisal Expert from the Ministry
of Science, the Honoured President of provincial medicine society, senior
associate expert from Jilin Province and the winner of special allowance
from the State Council. He was once the person in charge for more
than 20 national, provincial and divisional projects. He was involved in
the research and development for three new medicines (Infantile spleen-
strengthening oral solution (/)\ 572 # f# 0 Ak /%), Colon Recovery Capsule
(#5715 BE B 2), Ginseng Glycopeptide Injection (A 22 #E B 5 8 &), and
initiated around 100 enhancements of standard revision for medicines,
which have been implemented by our provincial enterprises. He possessed
five invention patents. As the first awardee, he won one top-tier provincial
and divisional prize, three second-tier prizes and a number of participant
prizes. He has reached a leading international level with certification
on the research studies of the structural effect and relationship among
ginseng polysaccharide, tremella polysaccharide, polysaccharide and
microsphere connectors. He was ranked the Outstanding Communist
Party model of the Work Committee for Organs Under Direct Supervision
for twice. His study background and working experience are as follows:
educated youth in remote villages (November 1968 to August 1973); the
student of the medicine department of Shenyang Medical College (August
1973 to October 1976); the pharmacist of the Jilin Provincial Institute
(Baicheng District) for Drug Control (October 1976 to October 1980); the
Master’s degree postgraduate of Shenyang Medical College (October
1980 to December 1982); the Research Assistant, Research Associate,
Researcher, Deputy Head, Head, Deputy Dean of School of Research of
Chinese Medicines of the Jilin Province (December 1982 to March 1998),
and among which: the Research Assistant of Kitasato Institute Hospital in
Japan (August 1986 to August 1988); the Doctoral Postgraduate, Senior
Visiting Scholar and Guest Researcher in the University of Tromsg in
Norway (October 1993 to March 1998); the Senior Pharmacist and Head of
Jilin Provincial Institute for Drug Control and Secretary of party committee
(March 1998 to March 2006); the Professor and Officer of the research and
development centre of Changchun University of Chinese Medicine (March
2006 until now).
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Bai Jun Gui

Aged 59, male. In 1999, he took a part-time postgraduate program of
master of business administration (MBA) at Jilin University and graduated
in June 2002 with a master of business administration (MBA).

In 2003, he took a part-time postgraduate program of doctoral degree in
technical economics and management at Jilin University and graduated
with a doctoral degree in management in June 2007.

From 2015 to present, he has been selected into the expert pool of
senior accountant specialised technique post evaluation of Jilin Provincial
Department of Finance. From July 2017 to present, he has been
appointed by the Jilin Provincial Agricultural Comprehensive Development
Office as Jilin Provincial Agricultural Comprehensive Development Expert
and Performance Evaluation Expert. From September 2017 to present,
he has been appointed by the Jilin Provincial Department of Finance as
an Expert Advisor of Training of Academic Accounting Leaders in Jilin
Province. From 2018 to present, he has been employed by Jilin Mingxing
Accounting Service Co., Ltd. (FME #E RIS AR A R)]) as a senior
financial management expert. From June 2020 to present, he has been
appointed by Jilin Provincial Department of Culture and Tourism as a
financial management expert advisor. Since 2010, he has been appointed
by several enterprises as an expert on the Engineering Project Evaluation
— Feasibility Study and an expert advisor on Enterprise Internal Control.

Tian Jie

Aged 51, female, holds a bachelor’s degree. Ms. Tian has been working
at Jilin Huifa Law Firm (5 #& 18 3 2 R0 S 75 F7) since March 1993 and
has over 20 years of experience in legal matters. She is currently serving
as the director of Jilin Huifa Law Firm.
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SUPERVISORS

Yan Li Yu

Aged 52, male, held a tertiary qualification. He has been working in Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited since 1989
and is now the Superintendent of sales division of Changlong Pharmacy.
He worked in the material division of Changlong Pharmacy from 1989
to 1994. He worked in the marketing and sales division of Changlong
Pharmacy from 1994 to 1996. He worked in the material division of
Changlong Pharmacy from 1996 to 2007. From 2007 until now, he has
been working in the sales division of Changlong Pharmacy.

Qiao Xiao Chun

Aged 47, female, held a tertiary qualification. She has been working in
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited since
1994 and is now the Workshop Officer of the solid pharmacy workshop
of Changlong Pharmacy. She worked as a supporting staff for Changlong
Pharmacy from July 1994 to January 1997. She was the Sales Manager
stationed in Tianjin for Changlong Pharmacy from 1997 to 2003. She
assumed the position of Superintendent of quality control division of
Changlong Pharmacy from 2003 to 2012. Between 2012 and 2014,
she was the Merchandiser of production supplies division of Changlong
Pharmacy. She was the Deputy Head of production management division
of Changlong Pharmacy from 2014 to 2016. From 2017 until now, she
is the Workshop Officer of the solid pharmacy workshop of Changlong
Pharmacy.

Wang Ying Xu

Aged 39, male, holds an associate degree. He worked in Jilin Huatai
Certified Public Accountants (& #4& ER 2 5TRI EHFT) from September
2006 to December 2006. Since 2007, he has been working in Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and now
serves as officer in finance department of the Company.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mok Sai Cheong Mark

Aged 42, male, is the qualified accountant and company secretary.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 18 years of
experience in auditing and accounting.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29 December 1995,
under the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law, the Company
was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to a limited liability
company. On 16 August 1996, with the approval of the Economic
Restructuring Commission of Jilin Province, the Company was further
converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20 April 1999, the
Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of retained profits at
the proportion of one bonus share for every two existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution of
Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in the PRC under the
brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong. There were no changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has only one business segment which is the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in the
PRC. In 2022, revenue of the Group was generated entirely from sales in
the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
Accordingly, no business or geographical segmental analysis is prepared
for the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 44 to 115.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes below.
This summary is not part of the audited financial statements.

PBENBE
UTAXEEEMPEEURAERBEZH
2 DR TXEABEERY - AEETE
BERIBRERZ 85 -

Results ¥E
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREF T
Revenue WA 841,586 705,456
Profit before income tax R PS50 A& A 197,822 177,273
Income tax expense gz (3,780) (33,990)
Profit for the year from ordinary activities REERRQEINREREB AFEL
attributable to owners of the Company ABEBE R 193,565 143,283
Assets and liabilities EEREE
2022 2021
—E__F —ET—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Total assets BEE 2,372,841 2,072,313
Total liabilities FES=R (760,543) (618,564)
Net assets BEEFE 1,612,298 1,458,749

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE

ASSETS

Details of movements in bearer biological assets, property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets of the Group during the year are set out
in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to the financial statements respectively.
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MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group has made acquisitions of subsidiaries and affiliated companies
during the year ended 31 December 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group had no other future plans for material investments or significant
changes in capital assets of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 20 to
the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 31 to the
financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The operations of the Group were financed mainly by shareholders’
equity. The Group will continue to adopt its treasury policy of placing the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents in interest bearing deposits, and to
fund operations with internal resources.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and in Note 35 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the reserves of the Company available for
cash distribution or distribution in specie was amounted to approximately
RMB1,479,296,000 (2021: RMB1,318,258,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group sold about 7% of its goods to its five largest
customers (2021: 8%) and sales to the largest customer included therein
accounted for 2% (2021: 3%) of the Group’s total sales.

In the year under review, the Group’s purchases from the five largest
suppliers accounted for about 52% (2021: 18%) of the Group’s total
purchases and purchases from the largest suppliers therein accounted
for 32% (2021: 5%) of the Group’s total purchases.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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None of the directors of the Company or any shareholders who, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and five largest suppliers noted above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. The directors
consider the impact on foreign exchange exposure of the Group is
minimal. Accordingly the Group did not employ any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2022
are set out in Note 36 to the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhang Vi

Mr. Xu Xiang Fu

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Tian Jie

Mr. Gao Qi Pin

Mr. Bai Jun Gui

Supervisors

Mr. Wang Ying Xu
Mr. Yan Li Yu

Ms. Qiao Xiao Chun

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out in the section “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Listed below are the names of all the Directors who have served on the
boards of the Group’s subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of
this Report:

Zhang Hong
Zhang Xiao Guang
Zhao Bao Gang
Wu Guo Wen
Zhang Vi

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments and those of the
five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS OR LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the Directors and Supervisors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors and the Supervisors) has entered into a service
contract or letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had entered into any
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company which is
not terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS

IN CONTRACTS

No directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this directors’
report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provisions being in
force for the benefit of any of the directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

MELARES
DT AR BRAEENRBESRE ALY
BRI AEENBAREEOAL -

3R 3h
REEE
HEN
REIX
RE

B EERIVESHALZ
[

B EELAKERUREHEALZHEH
BEN B IHRKRM T4

ESNRESECRBESNHERES

FEFLES(BRELFNTESRES)E
EARBRILRP=F 2REENURLE -
EEMEFMERARNRBFTEARATER—
FRRKL B E X RBERECEEBERIN)
ZRBAEHNHEESE -

EEREERENh s

EERNFAMERARASEMBARERS—
TEUARBENEBBEENEIRASOTHES
HERAEENENE SRS

BE HEIERLTRE

FR - ARBHXEMBARREREE -
BOARBER EHES -

BT RIERX

R B R EAREE S REE AR
BER - B S EF ERRFEEARA R SRA
AANBARZEEAZHAZBETBEGE
SCHR -

HEH



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES

At 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing
by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) were as follows:

EEREERRONER

RZTE-_—_F+-—A=+—H ARAESE
EERTETBRABRARR REERE EE
(m%ﬁﬁ;’f%&ﬁﬁfwﬂ(r 5 M AERAI])
EXVER) IR - HBERG RESFHERRE
BHENMEE 1%1%@3521'*  JBH AN RZ AR i
uaﬂ%}ﬁﬂém KA - IREB X TGEMFE S
‘W%EEIJ(FGEML‘W%EHIJD%5 4615655 .67 IEFT
?5?%%3;5—{&@ MmZBMEANA 7 MR ET
MR MORE T ¢

Long positions in shares RBROHERE

Percentage of

Type of Number of Percentage of total registered

Director interests Capacity Domestic Shares Domestic Shares Share Capital

b 48 5 AR A

5= RE=ER g4 RERHE HRERB DL HWEZL

Zhang Hong Personal Beneficial owner 101,937,000 26.29 18.19
EEIN &A EnEEA

Zhang Xiao Guang Personal Beneficial owner 42,315,000 10.91 7.55
SREE fEA EnEEA

Xu Xiang Fu Personal Beneficial owner 5,227,000 1.348 0.933
CAEFS & A EnaA

Wu Guo Wen Personal Beneficial owner 900,000 0.232 0.161
REIX fEA EnaA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the B FXHBEBEEN  R_T__F+_A

Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company has any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards
of dealing by directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and supervisors’
interests in shares” above, at no time during the year were there any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any director, supervisor and chief
executive or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors, supervisors and chief executives to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

EEBEARDVER

B EXIEEREENBMDAER | — R E
EI BEFE  BEERTIETHABRRESR
BHEBE T \RA T FRRERRKITEE
3% B AR 2 AR Sk B 5 M XA o 2 #E
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R-B-—_FF+-A=+—H BBARQRGR
BEAE N EIEGEI6IEE TR A MEE
T UTAL(ARFRIESR  EEREBITR
ABBINRART G M@K G P EEE

Az NN
mMORE ©

Long positions in Domestic shares RRERNER
Percentage of
Capacity/ Number of Percentage of total registered
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Domestic Shares  Domestic Shares Share Capital
GRS
REEH B HERME RERHE ERERBDL WEDL
Huinan County SAB (Note) Beneficial owner 81,975,000 21.14 14.63

BESRIKEEREETRR(MZE) BHEEBEA

Note: Apart from the equity interest in the Company, Huinan County SAB does not have any
direct or indirect interest in the Company, including representatives in the Board of

Biet - BRAMEAR AR A RSN  BESIRIREEREA
ERRYEEFARRNEMEZKMEES - B

Directors. EEZEANRE -

Long positions in H shares RHEBHRE
Percentage of
Number of Percentage of total registered
Name of shareholder Capacity H Shares H Shares Share Capital
{hAEE MR A
REEH 514 HER &R EHRBE D WEZL
Chen Jingwei Beneficial owner 29,520,000 1711 5.269

BRRIE EREAA

Shen Qianzhen Beneficial owner 13,996,000 8.11 2.498

LEY BEaBEBA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors, Supervisors and
Chief Executives of the Company) who had interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group and the
Company were entered into or were in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders, the significant
shareholders or the substantial shareholders (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company had any interest in a business, which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the article of
association of the Company or the laws of the PRC, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was established, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no material related party transactions,
which constituted connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the employer’s
staff retirement costs charged to the profit and loss account for the year
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 24 May 2001 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as set out in
Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review and provide supervision over the financial
reporting procedures and internal control system of the Group.

The committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of the audited
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page
116 of the annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best of the directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this annual report,
there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 29 to 36 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

Messrs. Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited resigned as auditors
of the Company and its subsidiaries and Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai
Limited were appointed in their place. A resolution will be submitted to
Annual General Meeting of the company to re-appoint the auditors of the
Company, Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited.

By order of the Board

Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
31 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieve high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interest of its shareholders and enhance
its corporate value. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied with
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required standard
of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has also made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhang Yi

Mr. Xu Xiang Fu

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Bai Jun Gui

Ms. Tian Jie

Mr. Gao Qi Pin

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised nine Directors, six
of whom are Executive Directors, three of whom are INEDs of the
Company. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director
are set out on the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.
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The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim
results, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board of Directors to the management include the preparation of
annual and interim accounts for Board approval before public reporting,
execution of business strategies, implementation of adequate systems
of internal controls and risk management procedures, and compliance
with relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations. Executive
Directors are responsible for running the Group and executing the
strategies adopted by the Board. The INEDs serve the relevant function
of bringing independent judgement on the development, performance
and risk management of the Group through their contributions in board
meeting.

All Directors have been given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board considers that each INED of the Company is independent in
character and judgement. The Company has received from each INED
a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately quarterly
intervals to discuss the Group’s business development, operation and
financial performance. Board papers are circulated not less than 7 days
before the Board meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the board meetings. Minutes of
board meetings are kept be the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, other than the family relationship
disclosed in the biographical details of directors and senior management
set out on pages 15 to 19 of this annual report, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the Board.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Board meetings
During the year, six regular board meetings were held. Details of the
attendance of the Directors are as follows:

Exges
FR EROTARFREFSSH -EF2H
JEREBIT

Meetings attended/held
Directors B2E EHE BETEE
Executive Directors HiTEF
Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman) SROMFEE(FE) 6/6
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SREE A 6/6
Mr. Zhao Bao Gang FHE M5 6/6
Mr. Wu Guo Wen RN A 6/6
Mr. Zhang Yi RE LA 6/6
Mr. Xu Xiang Fu RMAKLLE 6/6
Independent Non-Executive Directors R ITEE
Ms. Tian Jie A#LZ+ 6/6
Mr. Gao Qi Pin mE M 6/6
Mr. Bai Jun Gui BEELE 6/6
Apart from the above regular board meetings of the years, the Board of B L& FE s EHE=eR RN EFgH

Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on a
particular matter is required. The Directors will receive details of agenda
items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in advance of
each board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Zhang Hong assumes the role of both the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board is of the view
that this has not compromised accountability and independent decision
making for the following reasons:

- the Audit Committee composes exclusively of Independent Non-
executive Directors;

- the Independent Directors have free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional advice
when considered necessary.
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Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman, is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and has considerable industry experience. He is motivated to
contribute to the growth and profitability of the Group. The Board is of
the view that it is in the best interests of the Group to have an executive
chairman so that the Board can have the benefit of a chairman who is
knowledgeable about the business of the Group and is most capable to
guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner on pertinent
issues and developments to facilitate open dialogue between the Board
and the management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company appointed INEDs who have appropriate and sufficient
experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as to protect the
interests of shareholders. Mr. Bai Jun Gui, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms. Tian
Jie are the INEDs.

All INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. All the existing INEDs are
appointed for an initial term of three years and the term of office shall
continue after the expiration of the initial term until at least 1 month’s prior
written notice is given by either party or the Company to terminate the
same.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Every Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
appointment and they are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime, and the business and market changes to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities and obligations under the
GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

To ensure that all Directors’ contribution into the Board remain
informed and relevant, they have participated in continuous professional
development for the year ended 31 December 2022 to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skill. During the year under review, the
Company has provided updates and coordinated training on the GEM
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements to the Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company has set up a Remuneration
Committee on 29 September 2005. As at the date of this report, the
chairman of the committee is Mr. Gao Qi Pin, an INED, and other
members include Ms. Tian Jie, Mr. Bai Jun Gui and Mr. Zhang Hong. The
remuneration committee schedules meet at least once a year and the
quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.
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The role and function of the Remuneration Committee included the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make recommmendations to the board
of the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings. The individual attendance records of each
member are as follows:

FNEE S ABRIEREEMANITE
EZREHHES - BREDNE  BRARE R
BENR(BREREXR L REFRUSEE
N ZEMEE) ARAEETSRIERTES
ZEHEMEHREZZ FHZEERZEESER
= PINA R ARI N FE EEAELZ
RfE) Je B AL ~ AR EAD M )7 2 B R GR 1T R 3%
I FrE < AT

REE-_ZT - —F+-_A=+—HIBEF
B FHNEESRITTRAEE SKEZE
R BRI T

Meetings attended/held

Members RE SHE CETEE
Mr. Bai Jun Gui AEEL4E 2/2
Ms. Tian Jie Bt L+ 2/2
Mr. Gao Qi Pin SEMEE 2/2
Mr. Zhang Hong SRSASTHE 2/2

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed matters relating to remuneration for the Directors and members
of senior management, and discussed the remuneration policy of the
Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the Executive
Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company considers that the existing terms of
employment contracts of the Executive Directors and appointment letters
of the INEDs are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee according to
the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with written terms of
reference. Its primary responsibilities include reviewing and supervising
the framework, number of members and composition of the Board and
making proposals to the Board in respect of any changes and identifying
and nominating suitable persons for appointment of Director.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises of
one Executive Director, Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang and three INEDs, Mr. Bai
Jun Gui, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms. Tian Jie, Mr. Gao Qi Pin is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

REBZE-_Z__F+_A=+—HILFE %
MEZEGERTREERSREEABF A
BEE - Ws T ASE 2 FHBR -

ARBFMHERRCERNESZRTESTE
BRRBIFRTESREEZRITHRK - K
RAFHEZEER/RTESTEAN LB
FATEFZEEZRITHRIBATARE -

REEES

AR B ERIBGEM L AR AIERE R3S IE A
ZEE UAEMAIVABERE EXEE
TEREZNEBESSZHE  KEAHK
ME - YR EMEPMESSFHREMES
HEEFRIEANE -

RABERY  REZBEH—BATESFR
B RAER =B TEREAEERE
SHEmMEERBEGREL AR SHEMELEE
TREZE8EEF -

EMEEERESCEERDERAR
T FFIR

33



e

34

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee, and review and
approval of such nominations by the Board. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate potential candidates considering factors such as professional
expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings. During the meeting, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the framework, number of
members and composition of the Board. Also, the Nomination Committee
has identified and made proposals in respect of the outstanding
appointment of Executive Directors and INEDs. The individual attendance
records of each member are as follows:

REEFEEHREZESHM LA S

AL YHEFSESZLUE - ?m%%’é 3
FHEBEEREA - TEFEERE  HEK

BABRTEHESERR -

HE-_E-_—F+-_A=Z+—HIUHFE
REZEGRITTMASE - TLIREEE T
EHEVwR T EESERE - KB ABRMEN -
REZEGENHATEEZNE VN ITESZ

R AEER R R - SREB Z @R E
FCERINT

Meetings attended/held

Members 54= EHE CETESE
Mr. Bai Jun Gui HEELRA 2/2
Ms. Tian Jie Mzt 2/2
Mr. Gao Qi Pin SEMmEE 2/2
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SREE A 2/2
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and currently comprises %’f?ié\ SN _ZTE—F - BRIRAZEE

three members, Mr. Bai Jun Gui, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms. Tian Jie. All of
them are INEDs. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Gao Qi Pin.
The Board considers that each Audit Committee has broad commercial
experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in business, legal,
accounting and financial management in the Audit Committee.

None of the members of the Audit Committee has any personal financial
interests, conflicts of interests arising from cross-directorships or day-
to-day involvement in the running of the business. During the year, the
Audit Committee carried out their own independent review of the interim
and annual financial statements and financial reports and statements
included in circulars of the Company published during the year. The Audit
Committee completed its review of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company’s systems of internal control and reported its findings and
recommendations to the Board.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as follows:

SR EEFEALETM,
é?é?%%iiﬂjf“pil L

N

Meetings attended/held

Members RE EHE TEITSE
Mr. Bai Jun Gui HAE&LE 4/4
Ms. Tian Jie Mzt 4/4
Mr. Gao Qi Pin SHMEE 4/4

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual audited
results during the year ended 31 December 2022 have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation
of such results were complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosure have been made.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited was the auditor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022. Other than annual auditing
services, Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited did not provide non-
auditing services to the Company or any of the Group’s companies
during the year.

Auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out
in Note 9 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have the responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and shall ensure that the financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company, Reanda Lau &
Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 39 to 47 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In 2022, the Company Secretary took the relevant professional training of
15 hours relating to general corporate governance issues.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a sound
and effective internal control system. The Group is committed to the
identification, monitoring and management of risks associated with its
business activities and has implemented a practical and effective control
system which includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, a sound cash management system and periodic review of
the Group’s operation and performance by the Audit Committee and
the Board. The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis
by the Board to ensure it is effective. The Board is satisfied that, based
on information furnished to it and on its own observations, the present
internal controls of the Group are satisfactory. The Board has conducted
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control and is of the
view that the system of internal control adopted for the year is sound and
effective. The Group does not maintain its own internal audit team for
cost-saving reason but the work is shared between related parties in the
Company to assist the Audit Committee to review the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control system.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Extensive information about the
Company’s activities is provided in the Annual Report and the Interim
Report which are sent to shareholders. There is regular dialogue with
institutional investors. Enquiries from individuals on matters relating to
their shareholdings and the business of the Company are welcomed and
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

All shareholders have 45 days’ notice of the Annual General Meeting at
which all directors and Committee chairs are available for questions. All
shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual General Meeting.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

ExeHss

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the requirements of the relevant laws and
regulations of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the Company
(the “relevant rules and regulations”), the Supervisory Committee of
the Company exercised conscientiously its authority, safeguarded the
interests of the shareholders of the Company and the Company, and
followed the principle of honesty and integrity and worked cautiously and
diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice on
the operations and development plans to the Directors and strictly
and effectively monitored whether the policies of the Company had
conformed with the relevant rules and regulations or safeguarded the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

After investigation, we consider that the audited financial statements of
the Company give a true and fair picture of the operating results and
asset position of the Company. We also consider that the Report of the
Directors and the profit distribution proposal meet the relevant rules and
regulations. We have attended the meeting of the Board. We are of the
opinion that the meeting was convened in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. We consider that the members of the Board,
the general manager and other senior management of the Company
have strictly complied with the principle of honesty and trustworthiness,
worked diligently and sincerely exercised their authority to the best
interests of the Company. None of the Directors, general manager nor
other senior management of the Company have abused their powers,
caused damage to the interests of the Company and infringed upon
the interests of the Company shareholders and its staff, nor have they
violated the relevant rules and regulations.

We are satisfied with the various accomplishments and the cost-
effectiveness of the Company. We are confident that the Company will
have a good prospect of future development.

By order of the Supervisory Committee

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

Qiao Xiao Chun

Jilin Province, PRC
31 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

Ok

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY
LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 44 to 115, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unqualified opinion on those statements on 29 April 2022.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Units 1903A - 1905, 19/F 8 Observatory Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
T:+85227742188 F:+852 2774 2322
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BAZBMBREE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Loss allowance of trade receivables, contract assets,

advances to staff and other receivables

Refer to notes 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on page 61.

The key audit matter
BRETEE

BRETER

HEBOER -

E IR 2R E R
MEHEE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETFNAEERRETSE

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the
Group’s trade receivables, contract assets, advances
to staff and other receivables are approximately
RMB282,806,000, RMB14,688,000, RMB17,148,000
and RMB116,521,000, net of accumulated loss allowance
on trade receivables, contract assets, advances to staff
and other receivables of approximately RMB97,370,000,
RMB46,519,000, RMB17,148,000 and RMB63,862,000,
respectively.

RZBE-_—_F+-_A=+—"H  BE5EHNEKREZEZE
T AERNEE  REIRRKRHEAMEYKHIBREES A
AR #282,806,0007T © AK#14,688,0007T © AR
17,148,0007C & A R#116,521,0007T * R EWE 5 R
o BREE - A8 TRGCHE M R RIE R 25T B8 B
A RIK ARKE7,370,0007T + AKHE46,519,0007T + A
R #17,148,0007T & A R #63,862,0007T °

In assessing the loss allowance made under the expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model, the management of the Group
and the independent valuer used judgements and
estimates to determine the historical credit loss experience
and forward-looking information specific to the debtors
and their economic environments.
RIHMERBEESEEER(FEREEER DEXBETHE
BRER - SEEEIRERIB (A ERMGE R A & AT
NETBEEEBRLR M HEBARELBERFENA
EMEHR -

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Units 1903A - 1905, 19/F 8 Observatory Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
T:+8522774 2188 F:+852 27742322

Our audit procedures were designed to review the
management estimation on ECL model adopted for the
loss allowance on trade receivables, contract assets and
advances to staff and other receivables.
BMERATMXHRE BSSXEERERB(HERM
REZEREEEERRN 2%  BRERF REMEBEEZE
il o

We have obtained an understanding of the methodology
for the ECL model, development processes and its relevant
controls through review of documentation, discussion with
management of the Group and independent valuer.
BB ETECEHNEREENEIRUERN - 6H0E
7E R [A) 8 T80 B Bt B IR IR S 1R B B PR SR A O TR ER (S
EEBEEAMTE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BAZBMBREE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Loss allowance of trade receivables, contract assets,
advances to staff and other receivables (continued)

The key audit matter
BRETEE

BREEFTEH (&)
ESRUERR - HEE  MEIBRXRK
HEWGRIR 2 BB (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRNESTNAEERRETSE

We have identified the loss allowance on trade receivables,
contract assets, advances to staff and other receivables
as a key audit matter because the carrying amounts of
trade receivables, contract assets, advances to staff
and other receivables are significant to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and there is involvement of
a significant degree of judgements and estimates made by
management of the Group and independent valuer.

BRKEKE SRR ANEE - METBRRREMBER

FENEEREREA S - AERELFFH  REAZRKE
SR - BREE MEIRRREMRKFIANREE

HEAMBHRRERMEBEAN BXk BE5EEEE
KIB (HERME L B AR E B0 I K (et -

We have challenged the reasonableness of the significant
judgements and estimates, including use of significant
unobservable inputs adopted in the ECL estimation by the
management and the independent valuer.
BAEERAREAHE R zaEYE  BREBREEEE
KB AEMNEREEERGETRABZERTAIHE
AR -

We have also assessed the appropriateness of the
methodology and examined the inputs data used with
reference to the latest available general economic data
and the repayment record against the Group’s historical
trends and credit loss experience.

BATEHEERDAZEREE  YELERHABZE

REEEE AL

BEEEBREBEREERRERE

LR E R 2 B AR -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Units 1903A - 1905, 19/F 8 Observatory Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
T:+85227742188 F:+852 2774 2322

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

TRERSVBRRERMANEE
B ¥R &5 (Y &

BERAREFFHEMEEAR - HEE K
TIENFERANER - ETRBEEREPBEHRE
KB B EN RS

BPEHEEMBEHRENBERY NMRERME
B BT T HZEEMERBERTAL AN

D G =A
EETRAETm o

HBERMERE B RERNET  RANEE
EHEREMES - FUBRET - EEEMES
R BV BRI IBMERTBRETAT
RHENFEENEEREUTFEEAHR
BRALEIER - ERHAISAITO IR - AR
PIRBEMESFEERERRML - HMAFE
WELEE - HEHHE - BPRBEEARS

tEERE TSR ER AR
BEBRDER L ZESIE19421903A-1905F
BEE 0 +852 2774 2188 {HE : +852 2774 2322



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Units 1903A - 1905, 19/F 8 Observatory Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
T:+8522774 2188 F:+852 27742322
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Units 1903A - 1905, 19/F 8 Observatory Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
T:+85227742188 F:+852 2774 2322

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Fung Shing Bun, Spencer.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fung Shing Bun, Spencer
Practising Certificate Number: PO7451

Hong Kong
31 March 2023

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Units 1903A - 1905, 19/F 8 Observatory Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong
T:+8522774 2188 F:+852 27742322
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERBEREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—E-—F+-_HA=1—HIFE

44

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARET T ARETIT
Revenue WA 4 841,586 705,456
Cost of sales SHE A (193,551) (126,186)
Gross profit EH 648,035 579,270
Other income HABYA 6 56,662 50,083
Other gains H e 7 3,074 1,533
Distribution and selling costs DI RHERY (404,851) (360,717)
Administrative expenses TR (105,098) (92,552)
Profit from operations K A 197,822 177,617
Finance costs BB A 8 (477) (344)
Profit before income tax FRFT1S B A& A g 197,345 177,273
Income tax expense i3 fisz 10(a) (3,780) (33,990)
Profit and total comprehensive income for REE A R 2 E W 4258
the year 193,565 143,283
Profit and total comprehensive income PR G %A & 2 i as
attributable to: 1EEg .
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZEDN 193,565 143,283
Earnings per share BRAF
— Basic (RMB cents) —HEA(ARES) 11 34.55 25.57

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEEREX

As at 31 December 2022

RZFEZZF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARMZT)
2022 2021
—E-- T4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE ARBET T ARET T
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Bearer biological assets TRBEWEE 16 15,080 15,080
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NEE 17 296,088 198,594
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 18 49,116 36,619
Construction in progress ERETRE 19 - 147,857
Intangible assets B EE 21 25 32
Goodwill EES 22 6,254 6,254
Financial assets measured at LABESHRK ARG E R
amortised cost EREE 28 211,405 776,494
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAEE = 33 27,396 1,510
605,364 1,182,440
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 132,987 86,313
Trade receivables FEUE F R 25(a) 282,806 230,252
Contract assets EHEE 25(b) 14,688 21,790
Other receivables, deposits EAbEWFRIE « Fl2 &
and prepayments TEfTEIE 26 304,870 289,267
Financial assets at fair value through BARERT AEZED
profit or loss CRBE 24 263,074 176,533
Financial assets measured at ABESERK ARG E Y
amortised cost SREE 28 655,451 30,424
Cash and cash equivalents R MReFEY 27 113,601 55,294
1,767,477 889,873
Current liabilities nEaE
Trade payables FE B SR 29 65,685 51,335
Contract liabilities BHBEE 23,947 15,222
Other payables and accruals E At e /I8 R BT & 30 526,414 404,889
Deferred income EEIA 32 989 1,583
Income tax payable FERTETISHE 25,660 32,446
Other tax payables Hh {18 32,565 33,783
Loan from government authority R EE R 31 400 400
Dividend payable FERTAR B, 38,934 32,136
714,594 571,794
Net current assets REEEZRE 1,052,883 318,079
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 1,658,247 1,500,519

HEMEBEREE(CEERHBR A A 45
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REEEREX

As at 31 December 2022

R-FE-Z—Ff+=-H=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AN RHEZT)
2022 2021
B —E-—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR®T T ARBEFIT
Non-current liabilities FRBEMS
Other payable E e3R8 30 1,961 953
Deferred income PEIEUT A 32 40,966 41,954
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE 33 3,022 3,863
45,949 46,770
Net assets BEEZFE 1,612,298 1,453,749
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS F NI Y- DN
OF THE COMPANY =
Share capital f& s 34 56,025 56,025
Reserves E 1,556,273 1,397,724
Total equity AR 1,612,298 1,453,749

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  B&MI 2 M st BAN4R A B F5iRREEE 2 — 20D °
financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised ZEHGREVBHREAR T _=F=A=+—H

for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2023. EEEHE RIS -
ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
(LN iizh= i
Director Director
EFE EFE
46 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE T4+ -A=+—HIFFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANERBZTR)
Statutory
Share Share surplus Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
[N RIDEE ZERHRHE RERA @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%®TT AR%ETT ARETE ARETR
(Note 34)  (Note 35(b)(i)  (Note 35(b)(ii))
(Hii234)  (Biztssm))  (Hiat3o)i)
Balance at 1 January 2021 RZTZ—F—-F—RzkH 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,205,117 1,345,482
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year AEEEF - - - 143,283 143,283
Total comprehensive income FHEMGRE 56,025 51,098 33,242 143,283 143,283
Transactions with owners HRRZRZ
Dividends declared (Note 13) REERMZ13) - - - (35,016) (35,016)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+-A=1—H 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,313,384 1,453,749
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZE-—F—A—HZ&H% 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,313,384 1,453,749
Comprehensive income ZHKEG
Profit for the year AEEHA - - - 193,565 193,565
Total comprehensive income FEMGEE 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,506,949 1,647,314
Transactions with owners HRRZR S
Dividends declared (Note 13) BEER(7:213) - - - (35,016) (35,016)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-—F+-A=1—H 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,471,933 1,612,298

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN ==
mEREMER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FE-_—Ff - A=+—HIFFEF
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKZTR)
2022 2021
—E-C —ZT-—fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARETRT AREFIL
Cash from operating activities RETHELEZHS
Profit before income tax BRFTIS BT SA] 197,345 177,273
Adjustments for: HEIER
Interest income ISV N 6 (5,369) (7,141)
Yield gains on financial assets at fair value BANERABRN
through profit or loss TREER R 6 (1,444) (1,869)
Gross interest income from financial assets DA SE A FTEM S A E
measured at amortised cost HFI B e sa éﬁ 6 (29,938) (26,444)
Provision for/(reversal of) loss allowance of trade B HRBRERRANEEL
receivables and contract assets BRERER %/ (E5) 9 5,993 (1,521)
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving BEREEEERE/
inventories (E14%) 9 5,038 735
Interest expenses FEZ M 8 477 344
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRERE 9 32,423 28,089
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 9 1,174 789
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEH 7 -
Net gain on financial assets at fair value BANERABRN
through profit or loss SREERN TR 7 (3,074) (1,533)
Loss allowance on other receivables Hfth MG IR 2 SRR 9 9,977 38,540
Government subsidies BU#E AL 6 (504) (564)
Recognition of deferred income FERIRIE R A 6 (1,582) (1,240)
Loss on written-off of property, plant and M - BER&EEE
equipment 9 15,586 8
Operating cash flows before working HEESEEP L0
capital changes Rene 224,109 205,466
Increase in inventories FEEM (51,712) (13,936)
Increase in trade receivables JEUE 5 R Z L (62,195) (23,281)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BAWEERL /(M) 10,750 37,843
Increase in other receivables, deposits HEUGEUE « fle Rk
and prepayments TR N (23,580) (69,596)
Increase in trade payables JERTE 5 BRFE N 14,350 5,195
Increase in other payables and accruals HAFE(T 5B R IRt B L AN 122,526 82,910
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 8,725 7,658
(Decrease)/increase in other tax payables HiEMAHBECRD), /LM (1,218) 7,891
Cash generated from operations REXxBEE R 241,755 240,510
Income tax paid BIFFTEH (37,293) (24,716)
Interest paid ERFE (470) (344)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETEHELZHEBE 203,992 215,090

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN ==
mEREMER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FE-_—Ff - A=+—HIFFEF
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2022 2021
—E-C T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Cash flows from investing activities REEBELZHERE
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEERDAERAEREL
through profit or loss SREE (300,000) (240,000)
Decrease in financial assets measured PSR AT ERM S REE
at amortised cost o (30,000) 24,546
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and EENE  BELRERERELRER
construction-in-progress (11,317) (92,660)
Proceeds from settlement of financial assets BERIEDAER A BREL
at fair value through profit or loss CREEMSHEA 216,533 125,417
Interest received BUFI 2 5,369 7141
(Increase)/decrease in yield gains on financial assets &AL EFT ABaAIE B E E B3R
at fair value through profit or loss Yot (38 ),/ 1,444 1,869
Purchase of bearer biological assets BENLRENEE - (175)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEMEEMEHUR
equipment - 12,450
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries Wi BARINRe RAFE - 798
Net cash used in investing activities REEBRFTAZRSFHE (117,971) (160,614)
Cash flows from financing activities MEXBELEZHERE
Proceeds from government subsidies BB fEat iS58 504 1,159
Dividend paid BERERE (28,218) (26,358)
Net cash used in financing activities MEXEMAZRS T (27,714) (25,199)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRBSEEMEMTE 58,307 29,277
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~EHARERFELZEY 55,294 26,017
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRBEEZEY 113,601 55,294
Analysis of the balance of cash and RERALEENER DT
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances e MRS 113,601 55,294

BEM < M T AR S MR ER 2 — 87 -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
(the “Company”) was established as a state-owned enterprise
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29
December 1995, under the relevant provisions of the Company
Law of the PRC, the Company was re-organised from a state-
owned enterprise to a limited liability company. On 16 August 1996,
with the approval of the Economic Restructuring Commission of
Jilin Province, the Company was further converted into a joint stock
limited company. On 20 April 1999, the Company made a bonus
issue from capitalisation of retained profits in the proportion of one
bonus share for every two existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May
2001.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in
the PRC under the brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 20.

The legal address and the principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section to the
annual report.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(@) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretation
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) and the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(©)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain
biological assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.

Change in accounting policy and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (collectively referred to as the “new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning from 1 January 2022. A summary of
the new and revised HKFRS applied by the Group is set out as
follows:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
intended use'
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fuffiling a Contract!

Annual improvements project  Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020

The adoption of amendments to standards does not have
any significant impact to the results and financial position of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(d) New standards, amendments and interpretation
of HKFRSs issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2022 and
have not been early adopted by the Group

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS17 (including the

October 2020 and February

2022 amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
(note)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leassback?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and the related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5(2020) Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause ?

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilties arising
from a Single Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
52 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

New standards, amendments and interpretation
of HKFRSs issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2022
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all the new and amendments to HKFRSs above will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.

Basis of consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

()  Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(e) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(i)

Business combination (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Investments in subsidiaries

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year- end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within “finance income or cost”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss income
statement within “other gains and/(losses)”. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
consolidated other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

(¢)]

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(i)  Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available
for sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to changes
in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in
consolidated other comprehensive income.

Biological assets

Biological assets are living animals and plants managed by
the Group which is involved in the agricultural activities of the
transformation of biological assets for sale or into agricultural
product.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs at initial recognition and at each balance
sheet date. The fair value of these biological assets is
determined based on active market prices in the local market
with reference to comparable age, breed and genetic merit.
The gain or loss arising on initial recognition and subsequent
changes in fair values less estimated point-of-sale costs of
biological assets is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which it arise. Biological assets that are in the stage of
cultivation or do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the balance sheet at cost less any impairment
losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs
are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs or revalued amounts to their residual value
over their estimated useful lives. The assets’ residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Plant and machinery 6 years
Transportation equipment 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on the disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Transfer from property, plant and equipment to
investment property carried at cost

The Group transfers a property from property, plant and
equipment to investment property when there is a change
of use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and for capital
appreciation rather than for its own use in the ordinary course
of business.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

() Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets

representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated over the lease term of the

leasehold land.

(b) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

(k) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation, and
is stated at historical cost less any impairment losses. No
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such
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time as the relevant property, plants and equipment are
available for use. Cost comprises all construction expenditure
and other direct costs of construction. Construction in
progress is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when the asset being
constructed becomes available to use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
() Intangible assets

(i)

(i

(i)

Purchased know-how and prescription

Purchased know-how and prescription are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
which range from 5 to 12 years from the date of
commercial production. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the financial period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour,
and appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development
costs are stated at historical cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
begins when development is completed and the assets
is available for use. Other development expenditure
is recognised as an expense in the financial period in
which it is incurred.

Purchased in-process research and development
assets acquired through separate purchase
In-process research and development assets acquired
through separate purchase are recognised as intangible
assets at historical cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses.

Amortisation and impairment assessment are
accounted for in a similar manner as internal
development expenditure set out in (i) above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAEFBERME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets (m) FEMEERE
Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, WA ERA A () s AR
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are ARzEFEERAELEN I
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for BEARBERL SEBRLESH
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are SIRIEE F R R IR A 1 A A
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in B - AR EERE SR E EIER
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not BT o Wz BEEZREEBR
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the Hr e &5 - SpEE8ER
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its REBE  EEZIREESEAER
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher S ER B R AN B EL AT (5 A (B (B A
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For LEEE  FHEERER &
the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at EE TR IR 2 Al B Rl 2 3R
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable EHRE(REELSEMN) FADHE -
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other HEBEREZREEIINZIEESR
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for BENSERE BT H ez 8
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. I
(n) Inventories n) #E&

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FEERKANERTSRFERE 2
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost BRIEEDIER - ;ANE TR N
formula. The cost of finished goods and work in progress AEETE ° Bk RIER G Z K
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and REIERE BB TR - Hib
related production overheads (based on normal operating BEERAREBBzZEREZER
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is (REBEEFLEEN) - ETBIEE
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, ERA - ATE R RETIRIESER
less applicable variable selling expenses. BREPNGTEE  BRERRNE

BIHEFRXETE -

(0) Financial assets (o) =WMEE
(a) Classification () 2%

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following AEERBECRHEESER

measurement categories: THEr=8E5!

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value - BrEAREB=20GE

(either through other comprehensive income i@ HE At 2 E s (T HA

(“OCI”) or through profit or loss), and cEkE]) RFEBRE

mNEREE &
- those to be measured at amortised cost. —  REHEHKAFENSE

HEMEBEREE(CEERHBR A A 59
—EC_FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)

(@)

Classification (continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)

(P)

©

Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other losses in the statement of profit or
loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see note 3(b) for further
details.

Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and

cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated and entity balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within “bank borrowings” in current

liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in consolidated other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in consolidated other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
The management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (or laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

U]

(s)

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs
and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resource will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprised lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Foreign currency translation

()  Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Government grants

Grants from the PRC government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with the attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to prepaid land lease payment
and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the
related assets.

Employee benefits

()  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognized until the time of leave.

(i)  Pension obligations
The employees in Mainland China participate in the
defined contribution retirement plans managed by the
local government authorities whereby they are required
to contribute to the schemes at fixed rates of the
employees’ salary costs. The Group’s contributions to
these plans are charged to profit or loss when incurred.

The Group has no obligations for the payment of the
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of staff
other than the contributions described above.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

v)

(w)

(x)

Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. Trade and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment (see note 2(0)(d) for a description of
impairment policy). If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied or service performed, stated net of
rebates and returns. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of returns on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customers, the type of transactions
and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of good directly to the customers
is recognized at the point that the control of the inventory
have passed to the customers, which is primarily upon
the acceptance of the products by the customers. The
customers have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(x) Revenue recognition (continued)
Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer,
a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contractual liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether assets have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(m). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate present value, which has been prepared on
the basis of the management’s assumptions and estimates.
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e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets, advances to staff and other receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
management judgement as groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At the
end of each reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables with
significant balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade receivables are disclosed in note 38.

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation or amortisation charges for its
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment and purchase
know-how and prescription of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation or amortisation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income
tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Company
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

3. BASEETHAE KM (&)

(b)

(©)

(d)

BRESERRENEE - @
ETBRREMERTIENE
EEEERE
AEBERREEEAZRKES
RRNBHEEER - BEXEAR
EEEHAERUEREAZ TR
B AR Hl - BEREER
AEBZELENE  ETRERE
FRHHETBEZRAKE HE AT E
BzAEARXFZAELEER -
REBEHR - JBRZELED
KB LERATEIEER
ZEE o WO AERBEHRL
REBEREZEKESERXESES
ETHEMEEBRNG - BHEE
ERBRERIRMETEDTE -8
MEMEEBERAEEE FRK
HRIBE BRI H 38K R -

ME BERRBUARERE
ENERFHz b5
AEBEZEREETEYE BFE

REARELEE BT AE
HIR AT E R HA X - U fhst
TIREIEE RINBEARI % - B
FREBEAMBENBRIMTMEET 2
BRI AFHONELERED - &
el RsFHFRREETEE
HE R T SREL 2 1T B A BE{E (AT R
EXWE - fin] BFEH DR ITAE
STV EEERE T ESN S
X BEETARBEREES
HEMmRM LERE 2 EERIER
B T DA S SOORL ©

FriS®t
ARREBATBZAER - RE
EFTIS B RS B E L B A AR -
ARRBRZ RERERETIALZ
R REE - RRARINHERRHHR
HEZEHIAER  ZEREE
HIRBINEBIR 2 TR © W% F
SEHZERBBEREY TR
TEIA  EREZERSTEFLE
E 2 BRI A 2 BVER RO ST PR S 1 B
ERAE-

EMEEEREECEERHBERAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

4. REVENUE 4. WA
The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and REBFEXBRRERDHPER
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products. BEEmD- - WAKBEEERNWERZE -
Revenue represents the invoiced value of merchandise sold less WEREBAERE - T - BEHRRHE
allowances for returns, discounts, value-added tax and other sales S EAERATIER 58 o

related taxes.

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREBTT
Sales of Chinese medicines and FREE G B R EHE
pharmaceutical products 841,586 705,456
Disaggregation of the Group’s revenue by geographical KREBRAZRBET R ZIFD
market
2022 2021
—E-—fF —EF—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETTT
PRC Fh 841,586 705,456

REHEFFEARTA WA RN ATER
BRF ] A2 (BB I B o

The timing of revenue recognition of all revenue from contracts with
customers is at a point in time.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining PHEEHNRTEINEEINRSER
performance obligations for contracts

BHREHMBRAS—FHUAAR - HAEKD
W iR N BB EFETHER A
BHENTREER - At - AEEEEE
REEE  RYBRBEHEEREHR
DEZRARET(HIDKRET)BOR
ENRZEROTHE

The contracts are with an original expected duration of one year or
less or contracts for which revenue is recognised at the amount to
which that Group has the right to invoice for the sales performed.
Accordingly, the Group has elected the practical expedient and
has not disclosed the amount of transaction price allocated to the
performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied)
as of the end of the reporting period.
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e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision-makers (“CODM”), for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered.

The executive directors have identified that, the Group has only
one reportable operating segment, which is the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in
the PRC. Since this is the only reportable operating segment of the
Group, no further operating segment analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

In addition, the Group’s revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities and capital expenditures are predominantly attributable
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no
analysis by geographical regions is presented.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 contributed over 10% of the total
operating revenue of the Group.

OTHER INCOME

7 EPE R
AEBEZAXNENEERARBRT
B IEERERRA(NEZEZEZR
RALD  RERDERFZOBERRZ
BORER -

HITEZCHNAKEES —ER 2R
RREDER - Tz ME— 0 BRI P B BLE A
DHEPERBEER - AR D E RN
SEEEN BT 2/ELEDE
it Wi 2 WMEE — LR DB o

EER

oh - REBRKA - X - ¥E5 &
ERBEUAREARBSTBRIBOKEE
—E - BIPE - FElt - WESRE
DHT o

EREFEEF2ER

BE T _-_—F#Kr-_FT-_—F+=-A
=t+t—HItFE  TEFXAREZWA
RAREE @ LB AFBIBI0% ©

HAKA

2022 2021

—EC-CF T —F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

KiaE ARET T AREFIT

Bank interest income ERITH B HA 2,161 5,564

Other interest income H A F B U A 3,208 1,577

Government subsidies (Note) B ASFRL (H1aE) 504 564

Recognition of deferred income TR A 32 1,582 1,240

Yield gains on financial assets at fair BARERG ABENERE

value through profit or loss & = O i a 1,444 1,869
Gross interest income from financial LA SER AT ERM S RME E

assets measured at amortised cost FFI B U s 48 EE 29,938 26,444

Penalty income SA 4,119 4,810

Others HAb 13,706 8,110

Total et 56,662 50,083

Note: During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group received
subsidies from various local municipal government bodies in the PRC, which
aimed at the general financing of the business and technology development of
the Group which were immediately recognised as other income for the year.
There are no unfulfiled conditions and other contingencies attached to the
receipts of those subsidies..

Wit RBEZT-_—_Fk-_FT=_—%+=H8
=S+—HIEFE  AEEESHETRM S
MBFHEANEY  EEANESENERR
B EREH—REES - HNFERANRE
RAEMUBA o WEZ S HI B ERBITIE
B REASAEE -

TG B REA(CEERNERAR]
—E - CFER
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(UAREZT)

7. OTHER GAINS 7. Hftz=
2022 2021
—E-= —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREBTT
Net gain on financial assets at fair value BARBEFABENERIEE
through profit or loss B F W E 3,074 1,533
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BERA
2022 2021
—E-CF = =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Interest expenses on a loan from government BRI E 2 7|5 & A
authority 7 =
Other interest expenses HAbF 8 & A 470 344
477 344
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e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

9. BRFTEHANEFN

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat ARET T ARBTIT
Profit before income tax for the year KEZBRETET A& T
is arrived at after charging: Bk T5I&IE -
Cost of inventories sold (excluding EHETERAN (TR
additional provision for, and N R MEEEE R
write off of obsolete and TEETFE
slow-moving inventories) 181,216 117,485
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving  BEEE J 4 44717 &5 B4
inventories (included in cost of sales) (FFASHEKA) 5,038 735
(Reversal of)/loss allowance for trade BN E SR R ALY
receivables and contract assets B (FERE
|),/ R 25 5,993 (1,521)
Provision for loss allowance on L {th fEINGRIA 2 s R S
other receivables 26 7,977 38,540
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z AN B & 439 369
Research and development cost R A (T AITE )
(included in administrative expense) 19,061 20,578
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - RENEREITE
equipment 17 32,423 28,089
Amortisation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 18 1,174 789
Amortisation of intangible assets R A S 7 -
Employee benefits expenses and BTIRMEBARANER
human resources cost (excluding MR (TERES R
directors’ and supervisors’ EEEME)
remuneration):
Salaries and allowances e MOERL 122,729 95,549
Sales commission ¥BEMe 21,193 21,920
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFT SR 2,507 552
Loss on written-off of property, plant W -~ BB K&
and equipment [E518 15,586 8

EMEEEREACEERNHERAH
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e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(@) Income tax represents:

10. IR
(a) FIEBLELE

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T

PRC corporate income tax H B 7 ZE TS A
— Current year —ARFE 20,957 30,520
— Under-provision of prior year —AEFERENE 9,550 =
Deferred taxation (Note 33) RIERTE (H75233) 26,727 3,470
3,870 33,990

The PRC corporate income tax is provided according to the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, which became effective
from 1 January 2008. In accordance with the new tax law,
an unified enterprise income tax rate of 25% is applied to
both domestic-invested enterprises and foreign-invested
enterprises.

On 17 September 2015, the Company was accredited
as a “National New and High-tech Enterprise” by the Jilin
Provincial Science and Technology Bureau (&5 #f & &l £ &
fiTEZ). The Company is entitled to a reduced PRC corporate
Income tax rate of 15% for another three consecutive years
commenced since year 2018.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(o) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

10. TSRt ()
(b) BLIE Kt BE R 35 R 1208 A B

REERMT :
2022 2021
—EC-CF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR ARET T

Profit before income tax B PSR A& 197,345 177,273
National tax calculated at PRC enterprise  12Fh B> 2 F 155 £15%

income tax rate of 15% (2021: 15%) T —F 1 15%)

FTEA BT 29,602 26,591

Tax effect of non-taxable income BEFRRBRART SR w 2 1,391 (5,309)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A S RIS & (10,038) 9,238
Under-provision of prior year BEFERETR 9,550 =
Deferred tax on temporary differences in 81 [ i =48 7 IR E I8

prior year (26,727) 3,470
Income tax expense TS fisz 3,870 33,990

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2022 is based on the profit attributable to owners
of the Company for the year of RMB193,565,000 (2021:
RMB143,283,000) and 560,250,000 shares in issue during the year
(2021: 560,250,000 shares).

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

. BRER
BE_Z_—_F+-_HA=+—RHI1LF
- SRERBFTIREFARRD G HE
B AR FI A R #193,565,0007T (=
T——4F : AR#143,283,0007T) & F
AN B 217 I 19 560,250,000 ( = F = —
£ : 560,250,0000%) 5+ -

HREE TSR T _—F+=
A=+ HILGETEBEH ST B
f% AT ER Y| BRREEERF)

EMEEEREECEERHBERAH
—T— —FFIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 12. A RI#EHE AL &R

COMPANY
Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended HE—_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE
31 December 2022 includes a profit of RMB202,212,000 (2021: N RNRAIEB AR RN SR A
RMB141,049,000) which has been dealt with in the financial R#202,212,000c(ZF=Z—%F : AR
statements of the Company (Note 35). #142,049,0007T) ' % H E R A A )
2 iR R R E (PEE35) °
13. DIVIDENDS 13. K&
2022 2021
—EC-CF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
2022 Special dividend — RMB0.0625 (2021 - FRFIRE-ERAR
Special dividend — RMB0.0625) per share #0.06257T( —F = —F 55
f& 8 — AR#0.06257T) 35,016 35,016
No final dividend has been proposed or paid by the Company in ARARUIEZHRTEEZZT ==
respect of the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. T A=+ —HLEFEZEAKRBRE
- —FfE)
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION

(@) Directors’ remuneration (@)
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules and section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation is as follows:

14. EERSRITRAEME

EEME

FR - RBGEM EMHRBIREH
(RBEHEBIN(5622F ) E383 1% K&
(RRI(EBEEZMEER)RODFH
2 REMBENESME T

2022 —E-—F
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’ and other Discretionary fund 2022
fees benefits bonus contributions Total
2= 4:1 ZBICF
EEHE REMRE MERAL  BASHER “#Me
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TRT AR®T:R
(Note (i)
(Hizt)
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Zhang Hong (Chairman) RoA(F/E) - 239 300 - 539
Zhang Xiao Guang REEN - 186 200 28 414
Zhao Bao Gang EER - 133 120 73 326
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 46 79 23 148
Zhang Yi RE - 182 160 21 363
Xu Xiang Fu A EPS - 101 120 21 242
Independlent Non-Executive BUHHTEE
Directors:
Gao Qi Pin SEm - 72 - - 72
Tian Jie g - 10 - - 10
Bai Jun Gui BEE - 5 - - 5
- 974 979 166 2,119
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration HiaE - () BIEEARTHEESHBER

Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

o THERG2EALEL
BEE  BEARBRAELER
MIZBIRREE
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e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSHRITHRAEME(E)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) ES=M<(E)
2021 —TE-—F
Salaries,

allowances Pension
Directors’ and other  Discretionary fund 2021
fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
2= —T-—&
EEE  REMFR WBTEAL  BRAIEHEH BEe

RVB'OO0O ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTR ARBTT ARETR ARETRL

(Note (i)
(Hizt()
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Zhang Hong (Chairman) RoA(F/E) - 272 248 - 520
Zhang Xiao Guang REEN - 218 186 8 412
Zhao Bao Gang b=t - 173 111 13 297
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 60 55 9 124
Zhang Yi RE - 195 133 8 331
Xu Xiang Fu A EPS - 106 111 3 220
Independlent Non-Executive BUHHTEE
Directors:
Gao Qi Pin SEm - 66 - - 66
Gao Yong Cai (resigned on SkA(RZZ=—F
5 August 2021) NARBEAE) = = - - -
Tian Jie m - 10 - - 10
Bai Jun Gui (appointed on HEE(RZZE=_—%F
23 September 2021) NB=1+=H
BZE) = = = = =
- 1,100 844 36 1,980
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration ez - () WIBIEA BT NEE SRR
Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having # - UHEEELELEEL
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results, EEE  AARBRRAIELR
individual performance and comparable market statistics. THIZEBIREETE ©
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Senior executives’ remuneration
Details of remuneration paid to the Supervisors of the
Company which were all below HK$1,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB877,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
RMB817,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021) are as

14, EERSRITHRAEME ()

(b) SRITHAEMS
AEBERAARRSEET M ZEE
FE 1,000,000 T(REBE=F
——F+-—A=t+—HLEERE
RARBES77,000t KRB E-Z

follows: ——HF+-A=t+—HILFERE
MAR®S17,0007T) * HFB a0
T~
2022 —ECHF
Salaries,
allowances
and other  Discretionary Pension fund 2022
benefits bonus contributions Total
F2ac =1 —E-CF
R H % BETEAL BARESMHER et e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR
(Note (i)
(a)
Supervisors: 2%
Qiao Xiao Chun BELS 60 60 17 137
Wang Ying Xu THEMB 39 15 15 69
Yan Li Yu BEE 42 2 15 59
141 77 47 265
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration ez - () WIBIEA BT NEE S HERBE

Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

#UREEE2ELAEER
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Senior executives’ remuneration (continued)

14. EERSRITBRAEME ()

(b) SRITBAEME(HE)

2021 T —F
Salaries,
allowances
and other Discretionary Pension fund 2021
benefits bonus contributions Total
e 2R —E-—fF
R H fh Flzs BB TEAL RIS Rl e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETIT ARETTT
(Note (i)
(Biz20)
Supervisors: EE
Qiao Xiao Chun BELS 66 55 3 124
Wang Ying Xu T&EMB 50 5 3 58
Yan Li Yu BEE 42 5 3 50
158 65 9 232
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration Bzt - () BIEEARTHNEE SHBER

Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals during the year included zero
Directors (2021: zero Directors) whose remuneration were set
out in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the five (2021: five)
highest paid, non-director employee whose remuneration
was below HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to RMB877,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and RMB817,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021) are as follows:

14. EERSRITBRAEME ()

()

TEESHFMAL
FAhEERSTFMALTBEBRETS
EF(—T-_—F FEHEF) -
EMEFBER EX @B - 5
Gy REERERSHMEESE
B(ZZE=-—F: AR)Z2FHE
71,000,000 L(BHE=—S =4
+-A=+—BILEEERERA
R¥877,000c RBE_T = —4F
T A=+ BHUEFERSERAR
#817,0007T) + EFBHFFIBAT ¢

2022 2021
—EC-CF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR ARET T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ~ #i& - 7284 & E A Rl 4,479 2,832
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIHR 19 6
4,498 2,838

Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in (a)
above, the emoluments of supervisors and other senior
management whose profiles are included in the Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management section of this
report were below HK$1,000,000, equivalent to RMB877,000
(2021: equivalent to RMB817,000) for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to these highest paid
employees as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

Br EX(@BERENESIES I
BNERAREEEZERSREEE
HE—MNEEREMSREEA
BNMeREBEZE-_ZT_—Fr=F
——F+-_A=+—HLEEFEHER
71,000,000 7T © HHE R AR
877,000 (—E=—4F : FHERA
R#817,0007T) °

HEZZ - —FR-F-—F+=
A=+—HItEE  AEETER
ZE &= E o E B T HERBY S 1E
BEMASIRIMARE B2 12
g o skIERER 2 fE o
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e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKZETR)
15. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 15. EIRERIFHE
Defined contribution retirement plans EREHFERIRETE
Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the BEPEEASSRARER  A5H
PRC, the Group participate in a defined contribution retirement 28 P B EMNE TR BRSNS T
benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal BRI ETE ([ %EH8]) - &
government authority in the Jilin Province whereby the Group bt ARBAEAEWREENHEBELE
is required to make contributions to the Scheme at certain B —JE B 2 b [Aa& st 814 %h\ 75 B
percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant salaries. The local Y ENRKNEBNZERAEFTE
government authority is responsible for the entire pension obligation BEfAE -
payable to retired employees.
The Group’s contribution to retirement benefits schemes for the REEZZT-_F+A=+—HItF
year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to RMB2,720,000 (2021: E - A& B AT T B AR IR AR F 5T 8 R
RMB597,000). The Group has no other material obligation for the BAREE2 720,000 (ZF=—F : AR
payment of pension benefits associated with the Scheme. #597,0007T ) ° 2N & B 3 % A b 75 B a4
TEIMERNRAREANHEE °
16. BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 16. FEBEYEE
Bearer biological assets comprise: TRRBEMEERLE -
2022 2021
—EC-CF -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Ginseng, at cost A2 EANME 15,080 15,080
Carrying amount at 31 December RT—A=+—RHZEAE 15,080 15,080
Recongiliation of carrying amounts of bearer biological assets: TRBEMEEREBELE
2022 2021
—EC-_F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Ginseng A
Carrying amount at 1 January S—H—RBZEREE 15,080 14,905
Additions during the year FRARE - 175
Carrying amount at 31 December R+t A=+—HZERAEE 15,080 15,080

The carrying amounts of ginseng were valued at their original costs.
These assets are in their early stage of cultivation and preparation
and active market prices are not available. In addition, the Directors
are of the view that the original costs would approximate their fair
values at this stage of their development.
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PaN
e B ERRME
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 1% - BEREE
Furniture,
Plantand Transportation fixtures and
Buildings machinery equipment equipment Total
BE- %8
BT iR R 38 EaRE &Y st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARRTRE  ARRTT  ARWTR

Cost: A :

At 1 January 2021 W-Z-—%—f—H 157,554 152,318 15,589 4,385 329,846
Additions AE 39,045 26,018 3,545 261 68,869
Disposals & (7,278) (9,130) - - (16,408)
Transfer f b - 239 - = 239
Acquisition of subsidiaries BN A - - - 64 64
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—F+-A=1—H 189,321 169,445 19,134 4710 382,610
Additions NE 1,799 6,770 2,722 26 11,317
Written-off A (15,479) (645) - - (16,124)
Transfer EE34 84,346 49,840 - - 134,186
At 31 December 2022 WZZE=—#+-A=1—H 259,987 225,410 21,856 4,736 511,989
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE

At 1 January 2021 RZE——F—F—H 52,243 96,668 7,367 3,599 159,877
Charge for the year (Note 9) R E(A7:29) 7975 16,393 3,370 351 28,089
Written back on disposals HE#D (3,675) (275) = = (3,950)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—4+ZA=1t—H 56,543 112,786 10,737 3,950 184,016
Chargeforthe year (Note 9) R H(A7£9) 8,135 21,818 2,081 389 32,423
Elimination on written-off b Eiclisa (oS = (538) = = (538)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-—F+-A=+—H 64,678 134,066 12,818 4,339 215,901
Carrying amount: FEfE

At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-—F+-A=1+—H 195,309 91,344 9,038 397 296,088
At 31 December 2021 WZE=—#+-f=1—H 132,778 56,659 8,397 760 198,594

EfNEREREACEERABRART 81
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

(@  The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

18. EAEEE
@ FRAAKEZFEAEEERAEBER
T

Land use rights

=+ i f5E A

2022 2021

—EC-CF T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREFIT

As at 1 January R—HA—H 36,619 37,408
Addition nE 13,671 -
Depreciation charge TERX (1,174) (789)
As at 31 December RT+=ZA=+—8” 49,116 36,619

(b)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

b)) REBEZPEIANEERBREN

are as follows: N
2022 2021
—E-—fF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEENERY
Assets (1,174) 789
19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 10. EEIRE
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
At 1 January Hn—HA—H 147,857 124,305
Additions NE - 23,791
Transfer R (147,857) (239)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 - 147,857

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 20. &ARQGKB LA =g

COMPANY
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 were as RZEZZF+ZHA=+—H HBA
follows: AIFFIBAT ¢
Country of incorporation Issued and fully Percentage of
and operation and paid share capital/ ordinary shares  Principal
Name of subsidiary legal entity status registered capital held directly  activity
MR K ERTRAR BEERE
HEAR AR RENERREEERMA BA/2MER  ZEROHNESL TEER
EMER T EBENEERRAT e FREEAF AR 5,000,000 100% EEEE
PRC, limited liability company RMB5,000,000 Dormant
EMERERENMEHRBRAR e FREEAF AE#20,000,0007T 100% RERDHEREEM
([REER" PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 Manufacture and
distribution of
health products
EMRERmAEERELAR e FREEAF AE#20,000,0007T 100% AERDHESHEERE
([RERm])? Rm
PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 Manufacture and
distribution of
beverages and pre-
packaged food
EMEREFHEREERAA e FREEAF AE#20,000,0007T 100%  RAREER
([RBeFEHE])S PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 Not yet commenced
business
EMEREENMRHRBR AR e FREEAF AE#20,000,0007 100%  PiEREER
(TRl PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 Distribution of health
products
EEEREREEMEH B AREEAF AR #500,0007T 100% 7 HHIRIZER
BREEAH PRC, limited liability company RMB500,000 Distribution of health
products
BEREBZEERAR HE - AREEAR AR #980,0007C 100% PiEREER
PRC, limited liability company RMB980,000 Distribution of health
products

EMEEEREECEERHBERAH
—T— —FFIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries classified as current
assets/(liabilities) respectively in the Company’s balance sheet are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

#1 As at 31 December 2022, £ 8 R had no paid-up capital. Its capital is to be
fully paid-up before 10 September 2026.

#2 As at 31 December 2022, £#ER T had no paid-up capital. Its capital is to be
fully paid-up before 1 February 2023.

#3 As at 31 December 2022, K&EFEHIE had no paid-up capital. Its capital is to
be fully paid-up before 30 January 2023.

#4 As at 31 December 2022, £& had no paid-up capital. Its capital is to be fully
paid-up before 1 March 2038.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the reporting period or at any time during both years.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

20. AR THE A RS (&)

FEU, (FEAT) B BB A B R IA 5 Bl 55 58
ARRBBEERBRZIRDEE (B
8) - KEER - 2B RRERERE -

#1

#2

#3

#4

RZFZ=—F+=-A=+—H  KERLE
BEBRA - ERAER =T EhA+A
RIBESE -

R-ZE-_—F+=-A=+—H KERKRL
EHRRKRAR - ERAER T _=F=
HAESHR -

bl

R-ZBE-_—F+—-_A=+—8  REEHE
WEMERAE - ERAKR =T =_=F—A8
=+ HATEEHR -

R-BE-—F#+-A=+—8 REYXEH
BRA - ERABR -_ZE=N\E=H—HA]
BHHR -

P 8 X B X ¥R S H R S AR (B R E
ERISEETERERES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BLEE
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Cost R
At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—H—H 68,135
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B A A 32
At 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and RZBE_—F+-A=+—H Z—T_—F
31 December 2022 —A—BERZZE_—_F+-A=+—H 68,167
Accumulated amortisation and RtBERBEEE
impairment loss
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F—H—BAK=ZFT=—F
+_ﬂf+ H 68,135
Amortisation BEGH 7
At 31 December 2022 RZEZ—F+=-A=+—H 68,142
Net carrying amount BRE A
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—_F+_A=+—H 25
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+_A=+—H 32
Purchased know-how and prescription were acquired through BEA ST e 2275 TH RS N 5 = 5 A& {ERR
research and development cooperation with independent third o BRIUAREEA -
parties and were all acquired in cash.
During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying amount of FRN EZRBEAZFEERREE LK
the purchased know-how and prescription based on the future EH SR T EARMRES 2RE
economic benefits generated from these assets. No impairment TE REEERRBEBE(ZE = —

loss was recognised for the current year (2021: Nil). Fm)o

HEMEBEREE(CEERHBR A A 85
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKZETR)
22. GOODWILL 22. B8
2022 2021
—EC-CF T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
Carrying amount BRMEE
At 1 January n—H—H 6,254 =
Arising on business combinations (Note 40) %784 GFEE 4 (f7240) - 6,254
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 6,254 6,254
The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating EEZEREET D BIDE o H+ 2% 237

23.

units of distribution of Chinese medicine. The recoverable amounts
of the cash-generating units are determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management. The cash flows
are discounted using a discount rate which is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant segments. The values assigned
to the key assumptions on market development and discount
rates are consistent with external information sources. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company
conducted a review of goodwill and no impairment loss in respect
of goodwill has been recognised (2021: RMBNIl).

TELARM HAEELBRM2AEKE
BRBEREEIFEIAEE - %%
AENEERZERRSRATEE]
EZFBREERRE - REREMRBA
Ko 7] [ BR AR B 0 BB 15 E e 2 B IR < Rb
B-mGERZEBRREERBRE
HEINBER TR —H - BE_T_—
T-_A=1t—BLFE ARAEFE
TRE R - HI 5 B R ERE
B(ZZ-—%: ARBZT) -

INVENTORIES 23. &
2022 2021
—EC-CHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Raw materials MR 54,934 24,182
Work in progress R 39,840 36,263
Finished goods BURK 44,106 26,723
138,880 87,168

Less: Provision for obsolete and B BRE R ERME

slow-moving inventories (5,893) (855)
132,987 86,313

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a provision on obsolete
and slow-moving inventories of approximately RMB5,038,000 was
made (2021: RMB735,000) has been recognised and included in
cost of sales.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

23. INVENTORIES (continued)

24,

25.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no obsolete
and slow- moving inventories were written off.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no obsolete
and slow- moving inventories which the provision were already
made in prior years, were written off.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

23. FE (&)
BHE_ 2 _—_F#Kk-_FT-_—F+=_A
=+—HIFE  WEHEZERENEF
EIELMES -

BE_Z_ kT - —FF+_A
=+—HLEFE  WEHSRANEE
ELBENEERFHGEERBEEE
YEL S o

24, RARBEFTABENESREE

2022 2021
—EC-CF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR ARET T

Current assets MBEE

Unlisted financial assets FEFTmERERE

263,074 176,533

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy (note 38(f)).

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT
ASSETS

(@) Trade receivables

BAREFABRENERMEEAAER
NAERBRTE=ERME38()) °

25. BWEZRRRENEE
(a) FEURE 5 ER

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETTT

Trade receivables JEWE 5 R 380,176 317,981
Less: Loss allowance R ER (97,370) (87,729)
Trade receivables — net e E 5 8RR —F 58 282,806 230,252
()  The Group’s policy is to allow an average credit period ) AEREBXRAGLETEZIERF

of 180 days to its trade customers.

F#H180H 2 EH) -

EMEREREECEERAERAT 87
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT 25. EWWEBSRFARESNEE(E)
ASSETS (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

(@)

(i)

(i)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on
the invoice date and net of loss allowance of trade
receivables, is as follows:

(@)

W E 5 iRk (&)

(i)

RIEHZA ARG EKE
SEEREREE  BRES
R BRE DTN

2022 2021

—EC-CF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARET T

0-30 days 0-30H 83,301 89,503
31-90 days 31-90H 71,156 50,295
91-180 days 91-180H 68,071 55,224
More than 180 days HB®180H 60,278 35,230
282,806 230,252

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, these receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the aging from
billing. See Note 38(a) for further information about
expected credit loss provision. Impairment losses are
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income within “administrative
expenses”. See note 2(0) for information about how
impairment losses are calculated.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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ASSETS (continued)

(@) Trade receivables (continued)

(i) (continued)

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

@iy  (#&)

25. EREZRARESHNEE(E)
(@) FEWE SRR (HE)

The movements in the loss allowance during the year FANBEBENEHNT ¢
are as follows:

2022 2021
—EC-CF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Opening balance FYERR 87,729 75,372
Addition 5 9,641 12,357
Closing balance FRER 97,370 87,729

(b)

Loss allowance had been made for the estimated
irrecoverable amounts arising from the sale of goods.
The loss allowance was determined by the directors
with reference to past default experience, current
economic conditions and forward-looking information.

(iv)  The directors of the Company consider the carrying
amount of trade receivables approximates their fair

value.

Contract assets

(v)

ERBREIRLEEM 2
ARARESREL - EF
E2ZREMRER - B
REBARAMELEEREE
BERERETE -

ARAEZERR BKRES
Rz EmEREQRER
=,

(b) BREE

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Contract assets BHEE 61,207 71,957
Less: Loss allowance o SRS (46,519) (50,167)
Contract assets — net BHEE—F5 14,688 21,790

Contract assets represents unbilled revenue of sales of
Chinese medicine and pharmaceutical products arisen
from the Group’s right to receive consideration for sales
of products but not yet billed. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group obtains
the confirmation of receipt of goods from the customers.

BHEERAAREARIIER
SHE R EE W R R M AL R 22

& &

HEMPERAZWA - E%

RN REGITR - GHNEEER
BB SRR BEEEASEE
BEPHUEHERR

EMEEEREACEERNHERAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 26.

STATEMENTS

HibBWRKE - FIERAARK

PREPAYMENTS |

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT
Deposits and prepayments & RIERTEIE 17,675 38,007
Advances to staff, net M8 TR - F5 17,148 7,021
Other receivables, net (Note) HAbFEMGRIAE - SFRE(ME) 116,521 96,671
Bills receivables FEWEIE 153,526 147,568
304,070 289,267

Note: As at 31 December 2022, included in the other receivables are approximately K- R=ZF=Z=F+=-A=1+—8 ' st AHAME

RMB110,000,000 (2021: RMB120,000,000) of loans granted by the Group to
independent third parties. The amounts are secured, interest bearing at 4% per
annum and repayable within agreed fixed terms. The Group does not hold any
agreed collateral over the balances.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, certain of the Group’s advances
to staff and other receivables were considered to be impaired.
For advances to staff and other receivables, impairment is
measured as 12-month expected credit losses since there has
been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
The impaired receivables related to staff and debtors that were
in financial difficulties and the following loss allowance has been

WHRBHAREBR FELE = AHNERAOA
R#110,000000 C(ZZFE=—4F : AR¥
120,000,0007T) ° ZEFRIEHEAR - BFF
KA%ET B WHAREE R EE R AEE -
AR BN R A RS A AR G o

=

N_E__FR_F=—F+=H
=t+—H ' AEEREIRMNHETR
B REAMERKIBERREERE © 5H
BISRKEMEBWRIENS @ BAER
ER12EAEHEERSE  RAZEY
REREEERRTENRER - Z5
B B /9 R Uk 3R IE A P A B BR R B 1Y

made. ETHNERAGH  BEEEEFLHNUT
EtE i -
Advances to staff Other receivables
BEIER Hi e R1E

2022 2021 2022 2021

B T =B —T_—_—F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT ARETRT AR%®TRT ARBTT

Gross amounts ks 33,753 21,433 180,383 154,749
Less: Loss allowance B iR (16,605) (14,412 (63,862) (58,078)

Net amounts HER 17,148 7,021 116,521 96,671

90 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 26. HthEWRIE - G RFATR

27.

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance of advances to staff and
other receivables during the year, are as follows:

5 (&)
4 79 1) B T8 3R 2 R OB 59
BERREMT :

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFIT

At 1 January n—HA—H 72,490 33,950
Additions of loss allowance HENES RS 7,977 38,540
At 31 December RT=ZH=+—8H 80,467 72,490

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TERM
DEPOSITS

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The directors consider the carrying amount of these assets
approximates their fair value.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Short-term bank deposits and bank balances and cash are
denominated in RMB.

Cash at banks carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.3%
to 0.35% (2021: 0.3% to 0.35%) per annum. Short-term bank
deposits with original maturity of less than three months carry
interest at market rates ranging from Nil (2021: Nil) per annum.

27. RERREEEYREHRER

RehBTEHRERAKERAERER
FREBMEA=EAHATZEHRRTE
R-BERR HFEECHE@MESRA
NAERE °

ARBIEEBRABRSEMLER - A
- REPBEREZINEERRTE - &
E EEMIEEERTE AKEEE
BREREETINERBZRITIEAR
HKRABMAHMBER -

RARTERAMRITEHRIBEEUAR
#IIE -

WITHEGFEEMSANEXZF03% 2
0.35%+T B (ZEE=—F : BF03%=
0.35%) » [REIHAR PR =18 A Z 52 iR
TEZENTEEFE0RNMHHETE (=
T_—F:0%)°

EMEEEREECEERHBERAH
—T— —FFIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

28. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT 28. Ui ATENESRMEE

AMORTISED COST
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBT T
Term deposits with initial term of over JREIEIE KRR =1E H
three months and less than one year N —F B E B 655,451 30,424
Term deposits with initial term of JREIBIE KRR —F
over one year B 5E BRTE X 211,405 776,494
866,356 806,918
(@) Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three @ REFEBBE=@AZRITHFRIZ

months carry interest at a market rates of ranging from
2.94% to 4.125% (2021: ranging from 2.25% to 4.125%) per
annum.

No provision for impairment loss for these financial assets
was made as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021
as the financial assets were considered to be of low credit
risk and the expected credit loss of these financial assets was
minimal. Deposits were placed with the licensed banks in the
PRC with good credit rating. All these financial assets had
no history of default and there was no unfavourable current
conditions and forecast of future economic conditions at the
reporting dates.

The fair values of financial assets maturing after twelve
months are disclosed in note 38(f)(iii).

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PN s
e MR RME
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AARKZETR)
29. TRADE PAYABLES 29. EE ZRW
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is AT RERZEZABERNE SRR
as follows: BRI AT
2022 2021
—E-= —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREBTT
0-30 days 0-30H 4,020 12,784
31-90 days 31-90H 2,992 12,469
Over 90 days H#E90H 58,673 26,082
65,685 B 585
The average credit period from the Group’s trade creditors is 90 to AEBMESEEAZFHEEHAEHB
180 days. £180H °
Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade ENESEXRETZEBREESHBENRE
purchases. The directors consider the carrying amount of trade R EERRENE SRR CKAE
payables approximates their fair value. HENDERE °
30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30. HfttENRIEREAER
2022 2021
—ECCF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARBTT
Other payables H fth & 3K 265,649 206,827
Accrued salaries EETTE 9,167 15,408
Accrued welfare FEET R & 9,225 6,087
Accruals EETE R 244,327 177,525
528,368 405,842
Analysed for reporting purpose: B B RFTER AT
— Current portion - mENEb D 526,407 404,889
— Non-current portion - 3EmENE 1,961 953
528,368 405,842

HEMEBEREE(CEERHBR A A 93
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

31. LOAN FROM GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY

Loan was obtained from Huinan County Finance Bureau for the
purpose of research and development activities of the Group. The
loan is unsecured and bear interest at one year term saving interest

31. BURKBEER
R E R B SR K 0 5
FBZA - REERAMER  RRE
AR R — & H B E R 110

rate promulgated by The People’s Bank of China plus 0.3% per ERFEREGTE - ZZEREHRZ
annum. The loan is expected to be repayable in 2023: TEFEE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTT
Within one year —FK 400 400
32. DEFERRED INCOME 32. IEFEWA
2022 2021
—EC-CF = =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
At 1 January n—A—H 43,537 44,182
Avrising from government grants REBUSEE - 595
Credited to profit or loss (Note 6) RE=ERET A A iE6) (1,582) (1,240)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 41,955 43,537
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—HEEE 41,955 43,537
Portion classified as current liabilities NERRBAEND (989) (1,583)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities DERIERBBEEHNS 40,966 41,954

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not
receive government grants (2021: RMB595,000) from Jilin Province
Finance Bureau and Huinan County Finance Bureau in relation to
support investments on plant and equipment for further research

and development of the Group’s intangible assets.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
33. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 33. JELFATISH
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as BIEFFSHEERBEBE 2NN -
follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFIT
Deferred tax assets: REFIBEE ¢
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after — A RRIE1 218 A & Uk B 2 BT
more than 12 months HIBEE 26,311 1,510
Deferred tax liabilities: RIEFIEAE :
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after  — #& A B @121 A & U @] ~ FEIE
more than 12 months HIEBE (3,022) (3,8693)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net EERIEEE, (BE)FHE 23,289 (2,353)
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as IEEFTETER B Ry RRBeEshan | -
follows:
2022 2021
—EC-CF B —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETFIT
As at 1 January R—H— (2,353) 1,117
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10(a)) REBZER qu)\(/f/fﬂfm(a)) 25,642 (3,470)
As at 31 December RT=ZHA=+—8H 23,289 (2,353)

HEMEBEREE(CEERHBR A A 95
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33. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movements during the year in the deferred tax assets and
liabilities are as follows:

33. IEEFTISH ()
FREEHAAERABOEHNT :

Deferred tax liabilities FEEBRIBEER
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
At 1 January n—HA—H 3,863 393
Debited/(credited) to profit or loss REBZERIR, (GEA)

(Note 10(a)) (Hia£10(8)) (841) 3,470
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 3,022 3,863
Deferred tax assets FEBIEEE

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBETFIT
At 1 January n—A—H 1,510 1,510
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10(a)) RIEZEAFT AHZ10@) 24,801 =
As at 31 December RT+=ZA=+—8H 26,311 1,510
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
[ gl e ©F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Domestic shares of RMB0.10 each ~ FIREEAE0.107TH
NE & 387,750,000 38,775 387,750,000 38,775
H shares of RMB0.10 each FREEARE0.107TH
HA% 172,500,000 17,250 172,500,000 17,250
560,250,000 56,025 560,250,000 56,025
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. &RARMBMRT

THE COMPANY
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—-H
2022 2021
—ECCE =E==
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiaz ARBTRT ARETT
Non-current assets FrBEE
Bearer biological assets PN BENMEE 15,080 16,080
Property, plant and equipment ERN 293,507 195,411
Investment properties REVE 1,623 1,738
Right-of-use assets FREEE 49,116 36,619
Construction in progress TEIR - 147,857
Investment in subsidiaries RITB AR E @ 86,480 86,480
Financial assets measured at amortised cost N AT ENEREE 211,405 776,494
Deferred tax assets EERIREE 25,897 1,510
683,108 1,261,189
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 110,675 66,816
Trade receivables U SRR 154,624 147,169
Contract assets BHEE 14,688 21,790
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HMEWEIE - sTe kB
Q] 224,449 228,076
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG (b) 105,243 67,031
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss R A BT ABHH S RE
B 263,074 176,533
Financial assets measured at amortised cost B SER AT ENEREE 655,451 30,424
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBR2EEY 89,210 46,430
1,617,414 784,269
Current liabilities RBaE
Trade payables [ENE SRR 65,392 47,981
Contract liabilities BHEE 18,595 9,575
Other payables and accruals H At IR R e B A 389,108 316,162
Amounts due to subsidiaries LT (b) 69,178 68,772
Deferred income EEWA 989 989
Income tax payable JERETSH 25,219 31,272
Other tax payables Hofth IR 27,097 32,778
Loan from government authority B HEAER 400 400
Dividend payable FERTARE. 38,934 32,136
634,912 540,065
Net current assets MENEEFE 982,502 244,204
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBAE 1,665,610 1,505,393
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. XD R BEMR AT (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

As at 31 December

R+=A=t+—H
2022 2021
—E-C-F —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARBTT ARET T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other payable H e 508 1,961 953
Deferred income EEWA 40,966 41,954
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIAAE 3,022 3,863
45,949 46,770
Net assets BEEFE 1,619,661 1,458,623
EQUITY R
Share capital LN 34 56,025 56,025
Reserves (= () 1,563,636 1,402,598
Total equity S ] 1,619,661 1,468,623
These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue ZEMBERERN B _=F=A=+—
by the board of directors on 31 March 2023. AEES et /fE R
ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
5R 5. ik
Director Director
EZE EE
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 December 2021, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost of
approximately RMB86,480,000 (31 December 2021: RMB86,480,000), no
impairment loss in respect of investments in subsidiaries has been recognised
in profit of loss (2021: nil).

The amounts are trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Movement of reserves of the Company:

35. BRI R ()

(@) R-BE-——&E+-fA=+—0 4B AA
B 1R B IR A4 A R #86,480,0007T (= F

F+=-A=+—H : AR¥86,480,000

TR - RAMKHEBARNREERED

i

SEEE (20214 : &) o

©  ARFFEEEE

Statutory
Share surplus Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BRADRE SEEBBEE REEF @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT AREFT AREFTT
(Note () (Note (i)
(Hizta) (Kiz2a)
At 1 January 2021 R=Z=——%—HF—H 51,098 33,242 1,212,225 1,296,565
Profit for the year REE R - - 141,049 141,049
Dividends declared REE K - - (35,016) (35,016)
At 31 December 2021 NoZE——4F
+=-A=+—H 51,098 33,242 1,318,258 1,402,598
Profit for the year RERERN = = 196,054 196,054
Dividends declared ’REEIR - - (35,016) (35,016)
At 31 December 2022 NoZE——F
+=RA=+—H 51,098 33,242 1,479,296 1,563,636
Notes: Kt
(i) Share premium (i) B2 EE

(ii)

The Company’s share premium account represents the premium arising
from shares issued at a price in excess of their par value per share.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the Company’s
articles of association, the Company and its PRC subsidiaries will
appropriate 10 percent of their annual statutory net profit (after offsetting
any prior years’ losses) to the statutory surplus reserve account. When
the balance of such reserve reaches 50 percent of these entities’ share
capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus
shares. However, such statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at
a minimum of 25 percent of share capital after such issuance.

(ii)

AR ARG & ERABBEREE 2
ERETZRMDEEZEE -

EERBEE

WRERBERRNERANA AR B ERMH
Al AR F R EFEHE QRN A
FFETAEERE - BARE10%HF
EEAEHNEEERBRHEESFD - B
ZBREENEREZSEARRAEZ
50% @ ARFIABITEERGE—F
BEFRIE - R E R A ERR
BEFEREBREITAR - A
ARBTRETRGHIEAROER
FRRANH)25% ©
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36.

37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions concerned with numbers of key
management during the year comprised only remuneration paid to
the Executive Directors, and is set out in Note 14 to the financial
statements.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes judgements to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure using a gearing ratio, which is total debts divided by
adjusted capital. Total debts represent total borrowings. Adjusted
capital includes all components of shareholders’ equity less
unrealized reserves.

In order to maintain or adjust the gearing ratio, the Group may issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing
or sell assets to reduce debt.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

36.

37.

BEALXRS
FRABEIEEEEXNE ZBRMABEA
IRSERERANTEENMNE  H
B BN IR KM TE14 -

BEARERER

EAEE

FEEEREAY TERELREASE
B A] 435 4B K 2 Y RE O 1 T 15 48 B2 AL B 7K
TR B R RS (B A RIERA
BERARBNE - B AR EIR MR -

AEEEGEEHHEARBRARRS
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RIFH B AR R A IR RAREIF R
TRERERREENEEIL FBRREMH
RmER  YHELHERENZHE
ZRIRB VR Al
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37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. EXEEERE(E)
Capital management (continued) BEARAEE(E)
The gearing ratio at 31 December 2022 and 2021 was 0.03% and MRZE_—FR-ZZFE-_—F+=A
0.03% respectively, calculated as follows: =+—HBZEREELESF]AE0.03% &
0.08% ' FTEMT :
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Total debts BB
— Loan from government authority — BT R E 5k 400 400
400 400
Shareholders’ equity NE R e 1,612,298 1,453,749
Gearing ratio BARA G E 0.02% 0.03%
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. MEEMmEE

38.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk,
price risk and fair values risk. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments either for hedging or for trading
purposes. These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices as described below to minimise
potential effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables, contract assets,
financial assets measured at amortised cost and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other receivables.
The Group allows an average credit period of 180 days to
its trade customers. The amounts presented in the balance
sheets are net of loss allowance.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure
to any single trade counterparty or any Group of trade
counterparties having similar characteristics. It has policies
in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history.

AEENEHEEAREZZRBYHR

- BREERR - u&béﬁ%ﬂ A
R i?’%ﬂliﬁ ERREREASLE

RS AREE R
TAFEPREE AR o 10 AL -
LB ER A KBNS TR RE R
BAER - LB EY A EB S
KRN EERE

(@ FEERRE
AEBZFESHMEEARS RIR
THE% B REMBURGIE - &
WEE - LEHENTFENSRHE
ENAREARBEFABZHNE®RE
E-AREZEERBREEREH
ﬁ%%%%m&ﬁ@ﬁ%aﬁ PN
SEMEESERPRECTHEE
HA180H - BEBBRAFIIN
SRAC BB IR -

ZRER B 4 B A (T AT R U R B —

ﬁ*%ﬂ%ﬂ%i%‘ﬁ?%%éﬁ%%
o ANER B B I E BUR IR A A

f% 5 EEREHENEPIEHEE
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a

Credit risk (continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the historical monthly
outstanding balances of trade receivables of 36 months
before 31 December 2022 and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

As at 31 December 2022, 1.7% (2021: 1.8%) and 6.8%
(2021: 6.8%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers,
respectively.

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables,
contract assets, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, and cash and bank balances and financial assets
included in the consolidated balance sheet represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group’s financial assets.

The Group’s management performs periodic credit
evaluations/reviews of its customers and ensure that sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
The Group places deposits with major banks in Mainland
China, to limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial
institution. Trade and bills receivables, contract assets and
other receivables are subject to the expected credit loss
model. To lower the Group’s exposure to credit risk, the
Group may request deposits from certain of their customers
before delivery of goods.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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38. MBEREE (&)

(@

EERBS (&)
FEHEBRENERN T -_—F+=
A=+—H Zri361E A @E A MK
KEEBZEDRBIRRER - UK
EZSHEEENHERE L EEE
1B o FEEERE AR N R
HEREEE RN NN REL
ERZNE AT M ATRE AR o

RZZE—_—_F+=—A=+—H " &
WAREBREAEERAATFHE
WE ZERBED RN ABITR(ZE
Z—F 1.8%) K6.8%(ZFT ==
£ :6.8%) °

BHMEMEWHIE EHEE
BAREABRSNEREE B
ERRITEBRLEREENFRAE
EREXRAMIINEEESNEE
RAKENEREEAENRRE
ERR -

AEBEEEETHHERFPETE
BEiE wE - WHEREMART
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RERPBEARENERRIT - AR
HAREA —HEREENEER
%o BB ZRRIEFR  GHE
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has trade receivables from sales of products
that are subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit loss
model. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from initial
recognition. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the ageing days. The expected
loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales and
the corresponding historical credit losses experienced.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021 was determined as follows for trade
receivables:

38. MBEREE (&)

(@

EERE(E)
AEBBHEETE SV BEREEL
FORMFBAEEEBEXNE
mIHERKE SRR - AEEFA
BBV B wELEREIFR AL E
FTEEHEEEIE - RUIPER
W BT AREE SR EREE
FEPANTEEEE - Bir=TEH
FEEE  BWE SRR BREE®
HIEER RS RARIR D 1R - TEE]
518 R B HE B B S R AN B
FANHRENERBEEEEE - B
ABERELARURREERF
EHEWIERE I RESER &
HE BT M ATHE B R o iR B2 -
R-E-_—F+=-A=1+—BK=
T —F+_A=+—HEKE
SR EIERETETN T ¢

Over
Within 6 months to Over 18
6 months 18 months months Total
HBiB61E A
618 A LA 2188 HBiE18EA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETIT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2022 R-EB_-_—F
+=A=t+-—H
Gross carrying amount RE®E 276,389 61,318 42,469 380,176
Average expected loss rate  “FIITEHEIE R 19.5% 29.1% 60.8%
Loss allowance R R 53,860 17,862 25,828 97,370
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE——F
+=-RA=+—8
Gross carrying amount REAE 248,836 39,798 29,347 317,981
Average expected loss rate  FiIFEHAEIE R 21.6% 21.3% 86.6%
Loss allowance EERE 53,813 8,515 25,401 87,729

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

FEN E 5 iR ARE B RN & & i
MAZINAREEBIEFE - HRK
Bl 55 I M E R S B RIEH AR —
R e

TG B REA(CEERNERAR]
—E - CFER

103



104

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’s board of directors when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates, or if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay.
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(b)
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e MR
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(UAREZT)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. MR EIE(E)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBESRMRR(E)
2022 —E_—F
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1year  1yearbut  2yearsbut
Carrying undiscounted oron less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

ORARE -FRE -FRE WEKE
BEE ReReE BEX MER BER E%
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR ARETR ARETR

Trade payables JERE 5% 65,685 65,685 65,685 - - -
Other payables and accruals A ERZUAREER 528,375 528,375 526,414 1,961 - -
Dividend payable ERRE 38,934 38,934 38,934 - - -
Loan from government authority EFF&HEE 400 400 400 - - -
633,394 633,394 631,433 1,961 - -
2021 —T=—F

Total Within More than More than

contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

ARAFE FAE FRE WFKE
KEE RoiER B2% MFA Gk Rk
RMB0O0O ~ RMBO00  RMBO0O  RMBO00  RMBO0O  RMBIOOO
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETx

Trade payables EREYES 51,335 51,335 51,335 = = =
Other payables and accruals ~ EHE[FEREER 405,842 405,842 404,889 953 - -
Dividend payable FEAR S, 32,136 32,136 32,136 - - -
Loan from government authority EifF#EE S5 400 400 400 - - -

489,713 489,713 488,760 953 - -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  38. BiiSEFEEE (&)
(c) Interest rate risk () R=@Epx
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its AEBHFERRERFEZRBIRTR
borrowings from the bank and the Huinan County Finance EEEY B BRER o RFEBFI=X
Bureau. Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to EEMERSAEBEHERSRE
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as FMERR - ZXEREEENASE
monitored by the management is set out below: FEBEOREHNAT -
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BEAI= EBFI%E
RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARET T % ARBTIT
Variable rate borrowings % B (EE
Loan from government Edisy e
authority B 1.8 400 1.8 400
The interest rate and terms of repayment of the Group’s AEERBEEREKERBPREES
borrowings are disclosed in Note 31 to the consolidated BTSRRI 581 IR R -
financial statements.
At 31 December 2022, it was estimated that a general RZBE-_—_F+=-—A=+—H &
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with REMBEHIE - WEEFE L
all other variables held constant, would decrease or increase FHek TRE1001EE R « TS E B
the Group’s post-tax profit by RMB3,000 (2021: RMB3,000). REET BN SIEMAR
3,00 (ZEZ—F: AR¥K
3,0007T) °
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming EliBRRE ST BRI EE R
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance HHEMES  BEstARZAEHN
sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest BEEFKEREET o £ TR
rate risk for the borrowings in existence at that date. 100EEHREEEHEET —F
The 100 basis point increase or decrease represents the SHER IFHAFERTRELRNE
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change BB o
in interest rates over the period until the next annual balance
sheet date.
(d) Currency risk (d) EB%EE

The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in Renminbi and did not have significant
exposure to risk resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Price risk

(e)

(f)

(i)

38. MBEREE (&)

(e) ERER
The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk or AE BB EEE TR REERRR
commodity price risk. Sk B g R o
Fair value estimation f 2AREME
Fair value hierarchy iy 2ALEER
This section explains the judgements and estimates Ei R A E E R B 3Rk
made in determining the fair values of the financial BRANEBEARGENEH
instruments that are recognised and measured at TE®MRQREDHE &G
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an it ABHEBEAABEA
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in iﬁéi\%ﬁfﬁ’l—ﬂfﬁr?ﬂ? G
determining fair value, the Group has classified its AEBBEEFEIBHES
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed mTEDRB=EEH -
under the accounting standards.
2022 2021
—EC-CF B —F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HaE ARKET T ARBT T
Level 3 Recurring fair value EoERREME
measurements AREGE
Financial assets at fair value BARERT ABZRR
through profit or loss SRIEE 29 263,074 176,533
There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for REA - KEERARBERFE
recurring fair value measurements during the year. For E-—R-IEHZ F'EJ om e
transfers in and out of level 3 measurements see (ii) B E-—ERTTEEBEARE
below. BT i) ©
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and REBBRARERERR

transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the year.

REEBREENS A RE D
HFE o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

(f)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the end of the year. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

(f)

(i)

(i)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year:

38.

MRk EE ()
(H AREMEE)

(if)

NREETTEERAZE
SAEALEEZER)
TR2ZINFAE=BRT

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E_—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Opening balance FEER 176,533 60,417

Acquisitions g 300,000 240,000

Disposals HE (216,533) (125,417)
Net gain on financial assets at fair value 2 AREFTABZERE M

through profit or loss BEN TG 3,074 1,533

Closing balance FREER 263,074 176,533

The above instruments included in level 3 represent
wealth management products, both principal and non-
principal guaranteed, issued by financial institution in
the PRC which was classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit of loss.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

The key unobservable input is the expected annualised
return rate of the financial product, ranging from 0.75%
t0 4.0% per annum (2021: 0.75% to 4.0% per annum),
which is determined by the financial institution.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried
at other than fair value

All financial instruments measured at other than fair
value are carried at cost or amortised cost that were
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

(i)

FXE=ZBAMERENTA
ATEEREERTHEN
Em - BREERNMIERE
ZETEDBRBEANER
ABSHNEREE -

REN E—BR - B8
BRE= BRI mE -

FETABEERBAZRIEAS
Bh i 1S 75 T /O 32 B 2= B TR AP
Fllim=E  §F5075%
BALOB(ZZT——F : §F
0.75%%4.0%) °

WHRARBEIRENERE
EREENAARE
RZEZZFRZT=—F
+=—B=+—8 ' ALk
EARBEFENSRITAEY
BREEANAETEEREE
B R ZN 2k S A AR 1 BR o

EMEEEREACEERNHERAH

—T— —FFIR
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 39. s RiEERSRMABEIRERNE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2022 and 2021 may be

categorised as follows:

2R E

AEER B _—_FR_FT—_—F+=
A=+—HBFERNeEEESHME
BERRREERE T ATl T AD 48 ¢

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR AR¥ETT

Financial assets

TREE

Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFTABENSRHEE
profit or loss 263,074 176,533
Financial assets measured at amortised cost LA SRR AT B S RE = 866,856 806,918
Loan and receivables B3 % e GRIE
(including cash and bank balances) (BIER e RIRITHERR)
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR K 282,806 230,252
Other receivables E b e U IR 304,870 289,267
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEEY 113,601 55,294
Less: Prepayment B TR RIE (15,925) (15,600)
685,352 559,213
Financial liabilities SRIBE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost  IZ# SR AT EM SR E &
Trade payables FER B SR 65,685 51,335
Other payables and accruals E b FRIA K EET & A 526,414 404,889
Dividend payable FERARE 38,934 32,136
Loan from government authority TR E R 400 400
631,433 488,760
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 December 2021

(@)

EMEEREREEMEHBRATE (“CHEAT”)

On 1 October 2021, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in EM A BRI REEZREHEERAF (‘KIHEAR
at a consideration of RMB500,000. The objective of the
acquisition is to expand the sales market of the Group. This
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition
method. During the reporting period, the consideration of
RMB500,000 has been included as other payable in the
statement of financial position.

40. WEEH B 2 =]

E
(@)

ETE_—H+-“A=+—HLE

EMEEEREEZERCHERA
A& T ]
RZZE=_—F+A—H ' ~AEEU
RAE AR E500,0007T Y 88 & A
IEEREEMAHBR A A ([ 4&8H
NAE)B100% M E - WIEEIEE
EREANEERHEEMS « ZWE
FIEHE R WA AR - RIREH
o RE AR 500,000 EEA
H A SRIBGT AR ISARR K ©

Consideration transferred FrEEzE(CE
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 500

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

Uk BE =5 18 B HAFT IS B K R
REasmT :

RMB’000

ARBT T

Property, plant and equipment W% - WE MR 64
Intangible assets mEE 32
Inventories T8 18,112
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b U IR 13,298
Bank balances and cash SRITEBRNIR S 1,690
Trade payables FETARER (3,512)
Other payables and accruals H At < 5RI8 S FE 5T 5RIE (34,375)
(4,691)

EMEEEREECEERHBERAH
—T— —FFIR
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

(@)

EMEEEREEREHARQIIA(EHELA")

(continued)

40. WRBFIE 2 = (&)

8

EE-_—H+-“A=+—HLE

E (&)

(@)

EMEEREREEREHBRA
B[R R ) (&)

Gooawill arising on acquisition W iE B E L B EE
RMB’000
ARBT T
Consideration transferred Freg @ (8 500
Less: recognised amount of identifiable B ERERE TR RT R B EFE
net assets acquired (4,691)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEBIHELERNEE 5,191
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition Wi EHEL W HEEZRAFEE
RMB’000
ARETIT
Consideration paid in cash BERRESRE =
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances B FTREEN IR & MR FE MR
acquired 1,690
1,690

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Profit for the year includes RMB448,000 profit attributable to
the additional business generated by #% §8 /A &]. Revenue for
the reporting period includes RMB6,694,000 generated from
FES NG

Had the acquisition of £X 52 & been completed in 1 January
2021, revenue for the year of the Group would have been
RMB651,411,000, and profit for the year would have been
RMB137,112,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
the date of acquisition, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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AEH A A RE137,112,0007C °
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

(b)

40. WEBHIB D H (&)
BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLHF

E (&)

BEREBEARAT (“BRERE") (b)

On 1 May 2021, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
n BREEEEEAR AT (VBE KB at a consideration
of RMB980,000. The objective of the acquisition is to
explore the uncharted market for the Group’s product. This
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition
method. During the reporting period, the consideration of
RMB980,000 has been settled in cash.

EBEREBEERQAR(EEERE
gl

RZE-_—FAA—H ' AEEI
RAE AR ¥980,0007T W & & m &
EEEERAR([EEERE]HN
100% M54 - WIESEEEALSE
EERAZZE=OMS - 2WES=E
DRI A AR - Rk HBR
REARM80,0007E B £ E
fif o

Consideration transferred FrEEzE(CE
RMB’000
ARETIT
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 980

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

Uk BE =18 B HART IS A B K R
REdmT :

RMB’000

AREFIT

Other receivables H {th fE We sk 1B 44
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 88
Other payables and accruals H At T 5RI8 X FE AT 5RIR (215)
(83)

EMEEEREECEERHBERAH
—T— —FFIR
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

(b)

BREREBEGRAT (“BEKERE”) (continued)

40. WRBFIE 2 = (&)

S

—E--F+-A=t+—HL#E

E (&)

(b)

BEREBEARLA(NEER
gE ) ()

Gooawill arising on acquisition W IEBEHELEHHE
RMB’000
ARETIT
Consideration transferred FrEsE R E 980
Less: recognised amount of identifiable net B BRI FTUREE AT kR & R E
assets acquired (83)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WIS T E £ e 1,063
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition Wi B IEH A BB F R
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Consideration paid in cash BEfRERE (980)
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances B FTEERN IR RIRS S B EL
acquired 88
(892)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Profit for the year includes RMB4,858,000 profit attributable to
the additional business generated by /& i & &€ . Revenue for
the reporting period includes RMB111,096,000 generated from
BrERE.

Had the acquisition of /& & £ &€ been completed in 1 January
2021, revenue for the year of the Group would have been
RMB701,798,000, and profit for the year would have been
RMB142,884,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
the date of acquisition, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

For the purpose of statement of cash flow, the net cash
inflow arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries amounting to
RMB798,000.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANREZT)
41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 41. EETBIEENEBEHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TR AEERETHEENEEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash G ERRERIFRCEH - @E
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EHEANABEAERNASELSRSRS
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the MERPIBEAREGHRESRENE
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from EMEBFIARRIFERE ©
financing activities.
Loan from
government Dividend
authority payable Total
BUSH#EE R EARE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBT T ARBT T
(Note 31)
(B15£31)
At 1 January 2021 Rn=—E—_—F—H—H 400 23,478 23,878
Financing cash outflows BEIR SR - (26,358) (26,358)
Dividend declared % BBk - 35,016 35,016
At 31 December 2021 RZB_—%F
+=—RA=+—H 400 32,136 32,536
At 1 January 2022 N-_ZT——F—HF—H 400 32,136 32,536
Financing cash outflows BEIR SR - (28,218) (28,218)
Dividend declared B E Ik - 35,016 35,016
At 31 December 2022 i S—r
+=A=+—~ 400 38,934 38,934
42. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 42 LBHF
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform BRI AEERES 0 B TFHE
to the presentation of the current year for the purpose of better HFEEFTUEHE  UAFEANEHN 2
representation of the Group’s activities: HH
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories of ZHESERNEE_ZE-_—F+ =8
approximately RMB735,000 which had previously been recorded =t+—BILEFENTHRXZIETHEE
under “Administrative expenses” in the financial statements for the T R SR ME A AR 735,000 ¢
year ended 31 December 2021, was reclassified to “Cost of sales”. BEEFHEEHEKAK] -
43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43. EH#tBI#EHR

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023.

EEg T =F=RA=1+—RH&FH
MR T 3R L F R TSR o

TG B REA(CEERNERAR]
—E - CFER
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFUBRE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

AEEFBETERECMBHRR 2 BEDE
MRFREE  BERBEREIIIWT °

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements is set out below.

OPERATING RESULTS REXE

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-RA=t+-HLEE

116

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“E-CF —E=—- B -3 —E-NF —Z-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETL ARETT ARETTL ARETTL
Revenue WA 841,586 705,456 622,250 645,885 647,672
Cost of sales HEMA (193,551) (125,451) (91,512) (107,533) (115,554)
Gross profit 7 \ 648,035 580,005 530,738 538,352 532,118
Other income and net gains Et AR zm
or losses BETE 59,736 51,616 48,370 37,970 58,188
Distribution and selling costs DIERIHERE (404,851) (360,717) (258,808) (336,217) (375,480)
Administrative expenses G (105,098) (93,287) (169,546) (64,691) (28,450)
Profit from operations oyl 197,822 177,617 150,754 175,414 186,376
Finance costs REKA (477) (344) (713) (120) (59)
Profit before income tax BRETS R A& A 197,345 177,273 160,041 175,294 186,323
Income tax expense FiERRAE (3,780) (33,990) (23,483) (30,568) (25,107)
Profit for the year attributable to FRARDAIFEEA
owners of the Company [E1ta 193,565 143,283 126,558 144,726 161,216
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“ECCF e a3 e S -3 —T-NF —Z-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETTT
Bearer biological assets N EMEE 15,080 15,080 14,905 13,402 11,745
Property, plant and equipment nE - BERRE 296,088 198,594 169,969 145,242 156,591
Prepaid lease payments BfNtiniEe - - - - 15,068
Right-of-use assets FREAE 49,116 36,619 37,408 38,340 =
Construction in progress EEIR - 147,857 124,305 74,061 67,588
Intangible assets EVEE 25 32 - - -
Goodwil mE 6,254 6,254
Financial assets measured at B ER RS ER)
amortised cost TREE 211,405 776,494 648,519 - -
Deferred tax assets BREBIBEE 27,396 1,610 1,610 1,610 944
Current assets MEEE 1,767,477 889,873 807,887 1,398,922 1,302,905
Current liabilities MEEE (714,594) (671,794) (415,435) (387,872) (375,484)
Non-current liabilities FRBER (45,949) (46,770) (43,586) (45,072) (46,332)
Net assets BEFE 1,612,298 1,453,749 1,345,482 1,238,533 1,133,025
Share capital B 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025
Reserves & 1,556,273 1,397,724 1,289,457 1,182,508 1,077,000
Total equity ek 1,612,298 1,453,749 1,345,482 1,238,533 1,133,025
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